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          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: As the

          3  Sergeant-At-Arms mentioned earlier, if you want to

          4  speak on any items, please fill out a Speaker's

          5  appearance card in the back, and also indicate the

          6  item that you're going to be speaking on and whether

          7  you're in favor or opposed to it. And also, please

          8  shut off your cell phones.

          9                 I'd like to call this meeting on the

         10  Subcommittee on Zoning and Franchises to order.

         11                 Joining us this morning are Committee

         12  Members Eric Gioia, Christine Quinn, Melinda Katz,

         13  Mike McMahon and also joining us are Jimmy Oddo and

         14  Simcha Felder.

         15                 We have a number of very important

         16  items on the agenda this morning, two of which are

         17  very close to the hearts and minds of myself and my

         18  colleagues, one of which is Community Facilities,

         19  something that we have been working on since we were

         20  elected, and also the Growth Management Task Force

         21  in Staten Island, which I know our colleagues from

         22  Staten Island have worked very hard on with

         23  Department of City Planning.

         24                 I'd like to recognize Commissioner

         25  Amanda Burden, the Director of City Planning, to
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          2  come and testify on the first three items, which

          3  Community Facilities, N040202 ZRY; and the Zoning

          4  resolution for the Lower Growth Management area as

          5  well, N040414 ZRY; and she will also comment on that

          6  Hunters Point rezoning, which is Land Use Number 114

          7  and 115 C040273 ZMQ, and related applications.

          8                 Commissioner, good morning.

          9                 CHAIR BURDEN: Good morning, Chair

         10  Avella, and members of the Zoning and Franchises

         11  Committee. Council Member Katz, Council Member

         12  Quinn, Council Member Gioia, Council Member Oddo,

         13  Council Member McMahon, Council Member Felder. Good

         14  morning.

         15                 I'm delighted this morning to speak

         16  about three major Department initiatives that are

         17  before you today for your consideration. I ask your

         18  support for these well-considered plans. While each

         19  is crafted for the particular circumstances of the

         20  neighborhoods it affects, there is a common thread

         21  in all three, to make zoning regulations more

         22  responsive to communities across the City and to

         23  enhance their livability and their vitality.

         24                 First I would like to speak about

         25  Community Facilities.
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          2                 Chairman Avella, I am sure that I

          3  speak for both of us when I say this is an

          4  extraordinary moment. This is the first time in over

          5  40 years that the Zoning rules concerning community

          6  facilities have been updated to better manage the

          7  potential for Land Use conflicts in neighborhoods

          8  across the City.

          9                 I am very proud to have partnered

         10  with the leadership of the Land Use Committee,

         11  particularly Melinda Katz and you, Chair Avella, for

         12  your excellent staff, to advance your excellent

         13  health and your staff to advance these reforms.

         14                 Why did we do this? In the past two

         15  decades as community facilities have grown in number

         16  and size, and in many cases have served regional

         17  rather than neighborhood populations, Land Use

         18  conflicts have become more frequent.

         19                 To address these conflicts, local

         20  residents, community groups, and elected officials,

         21  have asked that zoning for community facilities be

         22  made more restrictive in residential areas.

         23                 City Planning studies of these issues

         24  have highlighted the difficulty of reconciling the

         25  needs and legal rights of community facility
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          2  providers, with the important planning goals of

          3  preserving the character of residential

          4  neighborhoods.

          5                 Working together, the Department and

          6  the Land Use Committee have identified a number of

          7  actions that can be taken to reduce Land Use

          8  conflicts while respecting the needs and legal

          9  rights of community facility providers, and these

         10  are the changes before you today.

         11                 I won't go through all of the items,

         12  because I think you know them well. During the

         13  course of the public review we heard concerns from

         14  numerous religious institutions and several Council

         15  members that the revised parking requirements for

         16  houses of worship could be onerous and may place

         17  unnecessary burdens on new locally-oriented

         18  facilities. In consultation with our partners at the

         19  Council, the City Planning Commission modified the

         20  text to create a waiver for relief from this

         21  requirement where appropriate.

         22                 Later this morning, Richard Barth,

         23  who sits on my left, who you know well, the

         24  Department's Executive Director, and Ken Bergen, the

         25  Project Manager, will present the proposal in detail
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          2  and discuss in further detail the Commission's

          3  modification.

          4                 It has been a pleasure and a

          5  privilege to work with the City Council on this

          6  application, and I am confident that these reforms

          7  will improve the relationship between communities

          8  and the institutions that serve them.

          9                 Next I would like to speak about

         10  Lower Density Growth Management Amendments. This is

         11  truly a momentous occasion for all of Staten Island,

         12  and lower-density neighborhoods throughout the City.

         13                 One year ago, at Council Member James

         14  Oddo's request, and the Borough President's

         15  suggestion, Mayor Bloomberg appointed the Staten

         16  Island Growth Management Task Force to propose

         17  recommendations to tackle the issues of

         18  overdevelopment.

         19                 Our agency sat down with the

         20  Departments of Buildings and Transportation, Staten

         21  Island's elected officials and representatives of

         22  civic, environmental and professional organizations

         23  to focus on the challenges facing the borough's

         24  residents.

         25                 The Mayor gave us a 120-day deadline
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          2  and we met it. As the Co-Chair of the Task Force, I

          3  was happy to report back to him and to the Borough

          4  of Staten Island that we had identified a number of

          5  recommendations that could change the shape of

          6  future residential development.

          7                 At that time, December 2nd, 2003, the

          8  Mayor committed that these rules would be law within

          9  the year. And I am happy, once again, to report back

         10  that City Planning, with a lot of advice and

         11  assistance from the Task Force, has met and exceeded

         12  that mandate.

         13                 Later this morning, Len Garcia Duran,

         14  Director of Staten Island Office, and James

         15  Miraglia, the Project Manager, will present the

         16  proposal to create a new zoning designation, "Lower

         17  Density Growth Management Areas." In those

         18  neighborhoods with this designation, all of the Task

         19  Force recommendations would be required. In

         20  addition, we are proposing that the entire Borough

         21  of Staten Island be the first Lower Density Growth

         22  Management Area."

         23                 I would like to thank all of the

         24  Mayor's Growth Management Task Force for their time

         25  and effort and assistance in crafting these new
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          2  rules. I especially want to thank our Council

          3  partners, Council Member James Oddo, Council Member

          4  Michael McMahon, and Council Member Andrew Lanza,

          5  for offering their time, expertise and staff members

          6  to work through these rules and ensure that the

          7  solutions being proposed were appropriate to the

          8  challenges that their communities were facing.

          9                 Borough President James Molinaro was

         10  also very instrumental in this effort and was a

         11  terrific partner to the Department.

         12                 These new rules will provide better

         13  protections for all of these neighborhoods, but not

         14  just Staten Island. Soon you will be seeing a

         15  proposal from our agency to identify the Bronx

         16  neighborhood of Throgs Neck as the next area to

         17  receive this designation. We must, and we need, to

         18  protect New York's lower density neighborhoods in

         19  order to provide a truly diverse range of housing

         20  options to the City's residents.

         21                 Next I would like to speak about

         22  Hunters Point.

         23                 Finally, I am thrilled that the

         24  Department's finely-crafted rezoning proposal for

         25  Hunters Point has reached this point in the review
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          2  process. Later this morning you will hear from John

          3  Young, Director of the Queens Office and Neil

          4  Gagliardi, Project Manager, who will walk you

          5  through this fine-grained rezoning initiative.

          6                 As you know, the Mayor has made

          7  undertaking an inclusive, five-borough strategy a

          8  centerpiece of the Administration's approach to

          9  planning and economic development, and western

         10  Queens and Long Island City play key roles in these

         11  efforts.

         12                 I am a particularly passionate

         13  advocate for Long Island City, and I have taken a

         14  keen interest in the area's evolution and its rising

         15  economic, social and cultural profile in the City.

         16  The area has terrific assets: it's transportation

         17  infrastructure, its cultural and educational

         18  institutions, its dramatic waterfront setting and

         19  its valuable industrial and business services.

         20                 These assets provide the potential

         21  for Long Island City to become one of the most

         22  enviable, regional, mixed-use districts in New York

         23  City.

         24                 The proposed zoning changes will

         25  provide a vibrant and expanded mix of housing, light
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          2  industry, commercial enterprise and cultural

          3  activity in Hunters Point. While continuing to

          4  sustain light industrial development in the area,

          5  the proposal would increase much-needed

          6  opportunities for moderately-scaled housing.

          7  Reflecting current trends, the rezoning would also

          8  support a broad range of new and existing cultural

          9  and commercial uses such as artist studios,

         10  restaurants and stores more widely throughout the

         11  neighborhood.

         12                 The Department and City Planning

         13  Commission considered the various public comments

         14  and issues that have been raised during the public

         15  review process for the rezoning proposal. Responding

         16  to these issues, the Department revised portions of

         17  its original proposal resulting in the current

         18  proposal before you today.

         19                 The revisions involved the slight

         20  reduction of the rezoning area and a further

         21  fine-tuning of zoning districts to reflect the

         22  prevailing scale of notable residential buildings on

         23  certain blocks.

         24                 The proposed zoning is an opportunity

         25  to strike a desirable balance between creating new
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          2  housing opportunities, stimulating small business

          3  activity in Hunters Point, and fortifying Long

          4  Island City's concentration of light industrial

          5  operation.

          6                 We will continue to work closely with

          7  the Economic Development Corporation on its

          8  development of an industrial policy for this City,

          9  to ensure that Long Island City's industrial

         10  precincts contain their high concentration, have

         11  active manufacturing uses and employment.

         12                 Long Island City's industrial

         13  employment is an important element of this

         14  neighborhood's and the City's economy.

         15                 In closing, I want to first thank

         16  Council Member Eric Gioia for working with us so

         17  closely to refining this proposal, and its result

         18  today, and what I believe is a very, very good

         19  proposal for the City and for Long Island City, and

         20  I also want to thank Council Member Melinda Katz for

         21  her partnership and her effort in bringing this

         22  proposal forward.

         23                 And finally, I want to emphasize this

         24  rezoning plan before you is a modest fine-grained

         25  and carefully balanced Land Use strategy that
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          2  supports Hunters Point scale and mixed-use

          3  character, while delineating areas to the north and

          4  east that will retain their manufacturing zoning

          5  designations.

          6                 We look forward to continuing to work

          7  with all of you for the future of Long Island City.

          8                 Again, I ask the members of the

          9  Subcommittee for your support on these critical

         10  initiatives, and I thank you for your consideration.

         11                 Mr. Chair.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you,

         13  Commissioner. I know you have to go, and what we'll

         14  be doing is following up with staff on the

         15  individual items with our questions. But I did want

         16  to say while you're here that community facilities,

         17  and certainly the Growth Management Task Force, has

         18  been a cooperation between the Council and you, City

         19  Planning and the Administration -- and I think,

         20  Council Member Oddo, I'm sure you want to say

         21  something-- and it is a unique situation I don't

         22  think we've ever been able to do before, and

         23  certainly with community facilities, the City

         24  Council and the Administration and City Planning

         25  were a joint applicant, which I think is a first.
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          2                 So, I think this is truly a momentous

          3  day, as you mentioned, and I look forward to working

          4  with you, the Council does, on many of the other

          5  rezoning issues in the City of New York that need to

          6  be addressed.

          7                 Do any of my colleagues want to say

          8  something to the Commissioner?

          9                 Council Member Gioia.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: Thank you, Mr.

         11  Chair.

         12                 I'm not sure if this is the

         13  appropriate time, or should we wait? Are you

         14  sticking around?

         15                 CHAIR BURDEN: I actually have to

         16  Chair a Planning Commission session, so that's why I

         17  have to leave earlier than I would like to, but

         18  staff is going to be here to answer all pertinent

         19  questions that you might have.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: Thank you. And

         21  thank you very much for your testimony and for your

         22  hard work on this issue.

         23                 The one thing I did want to mention

         24  is your letter dated to me August 5th, discussing

         25  commitment from your office and from you to further
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          2  study the Vernon Boulevard Corridor and one block --

          3                 CHAIR BURDEN: Yes.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: -- 47th Road. I

          5  just want to make sure that is part of the record,

          6  as we vote on this today, is that commitment from

          7  you.

          8                 CHAIR BURDEN: Yes. The staff will

          9  reconfirm that with you. We have pledged to do this

         10  study to see if zoning, new zoning, rezoning is

         11  appropriate, and we'll be working closely with you.

         12  We have defined an area for a new study, and we plan

         13  to begin that in the fall, in the early fall. We

         14  will look forward to working with you on that, and

         15  apprising you of what we find.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: Thank you. And

         17  thank you very much, again, for all of your hard

         18  work and the hard work of your staff. Whenever we're

         19  dealing with an issue as complex as this with

         20  various computing needs, whether it be industrial,

         21  residential, some people obviously want more

         22  density, some people would argue for less density,

         23  some people want housing, some people would like to

         24  see more manufacturing, there's a lot of competing

         25  needs. And I thank you for your hard work on this. I
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          2  do think it is a good compromise, and I'm looking

          3  forward to having a more detailed conversation with

          4  the members of your staff when they come.

          5                 Just the one final point I would like

          6  to make while you're here, is briefly on

          7  manufacturing. And it's a conversation we've had,

          8  and I've had with many of my colleagues. Obviously

          9  the manufacturing base in this City has dwindled

         10  over the past half century, and it's a larger

         11  conversation that we need to have with various

         12  economists who actually do work for the City, what

         13  the appropriate level of manufacturing and

         14  industrial is certainly for the City. Certainly, I

         15  think we can all agree that some industrial is an

         16  important and healthy part of the economic mix of

         17  New York.

         18                 And what we really need to have in

         19  this City is a sustainable development policy for

         20  industrial and manufacturing. One of the stories

         21  that breaks my heart and really disturbs me is the

         22  manufacturer in Long Island City who was pushed out

         23  of Manhattan, just five years ago. You know, he said

         24  it was hard on him to leave Manhattan, but he's been

         25  able to establish roots in Long Island City now, but
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          2  is once again being pushed out. And what I would

          3  like to see is a five-borough strategy that gives

          4  this idea of really plannability to people who are

          5  starting their businesses and are able to rely upon

          6  a zone, an area that they look at and say this is

          7  not going to be changed for X amount of years, and I

          8  think that's important both for the City but also

          9  for Long Island City, because I look, as you do, at

         10  Long Island City as the greatest patch of land

         11  practically anywhere in the world with these

         12  extraordinary views and easy access to mass

         13  transportation.

         14                 But in the absence of a Citywide plan

         15  to maintain and sustain manufacturing, Long Island

         16  City becomes the only ball game, and then it has

         17  this competing pressures of people say, well, if

         18  this becomes housing, whether it be affordable or

         19  mix, or this becomes an economic development zone,

         20  then you're going to push out the very few

         21  manufacturers left in New York City, and I would

         22  tend to argue that this needs to be a five-borough

         23  conversation, not just merely about Long Island

         24  City.

         25                 I don't know that there's a question
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          2  in there, but I just wanted to -- but thank you for

          3  your indulgence.

          4                 CHAIR BURDEN: Thank you, Council

          5  member.

          6                 I think, as you may know, that the

          7  Mayor shares your concerns and instructed the

          8  Economic Development Corporation to come up with a

          9  five-borough industrial policy. They have a draft

         10  which is complete, which they want to walk through

         11  that draft with Council members and elected

         12  officials and interested civic groups before

         13  releasing that policy, they'll be having discussions

         14  with you and other Council Members who are

         15  interested in that. It's critical to the economy of

         16  the City and to our job base, and we totally share

         17  your concerns and look forward to discussing this

         18  proposal with you further.

         19                 Thank you, Council member.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I have three more

         21  Council members who want to say something, but I

         22  would just give a quick comment that the

         23  Commissioner has to leave within ten minutes, so I

         24  ask that everybody's comments be a little bit

         25  briefer.
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          2                 Council Member Katz.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Commissioner, I

          4  want to thank you for today and for coming and for

          5  testifying on all these important topics. I just

          6  want to make it clear for the record, this is a

          7  joint application with the Land Use Committee and

          8  the City Planning Commission, and it truly is an

          9  example of what can be done when everybody works

         10  together.

         11                 As the Chair of the Subcommittee

         12  knows, and everyone ones here, there is a lot of

         13  chances where this community facilities legislation

         14  could have gone down the drain, and it was really

         15  only because of the commitment of not only the

         16  Subcommittee, the Land Use Committee, the staff and

         17  of course the Chair to make sure that this happened.

         18  Every civic, every religious, every community board

         19  had different views on how this could be a perfect

         20  piece of legislation. In the end it's not perfect,

         21  nothing ever is, but I think everyone understands,

         22  this is the first step probably in a very long line

         23  of reviews of the community facilities law.

         24                 And hopefully we learn when we work

         25  together we can actually make things happen, and I
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          2  think we made this happen quicker in the last two

          3  and a half years, than God knows how long. So we do

          4  appreciate all that work.

          5                 And also, on Hunters Point, we know

          6  that we have a commitment from you to do the review

          7  of the areas that the Councilman spoke about. I want

          8  to thank you for that commitment. I know it's the

          9  first time I think you've ever done that type of

         10  commitment for the future, and we appreciate that

         11  you did that, in order to make sure that the

         12  application happened.

         13                 So, thank you.

         14                 CHAIR BURDEN: Thank you, Council

         15  member.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Council Member

         17  Oddo.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Thank you, Mr.

         19  Chair.

         20                 I just want to say thank you, too. I

         21  think both of your predecessors would be very proud

         22  of this day, because in some ways it was a blink of

         23  an eye ago, but I remember as a staff person having

         24  Mike Abel put in a Land Use item to address this

         25  issue in the mid-1990s, and at that time the
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          2  Giuliani Administration said, you know, we're going

          3  to do a more comprehensive, we're not only going to

          4  address medical facilities, we're going to do

          5  community facilities and then it got bogged down.

          6  And you folks really made this happen when some

          7  folks before you couldn't put it together.

          8                 So, I think as Chairwoman Katz said,

          9  Land Use staff, the Chair, Subcommittee Chair, the

         10  Chair of Land Use and all of you folks deserve a

         11  great deal of credit for making this actually

         12  happen.

         13                 And then, finally, just a thank you

         14  to you, Madam Chair, and your staff. This really is

         15  a great day for Staten Island. Some people have said

         16  it's the most important thing to happen since the

         17  closing of the Fresh Kills Landfill. I happen to

         18  think it probably is even more important to the

         19  borough, and to the long-term viability of the

         20  borough, with actually closing Fresh Kills. And I

         21  know there were some times when you probably wished

         22  that New Jersey had won that boat race around Staten

         23  Island, and weren't part of the City because it was

         24  so difficult, but I want to thank you and I want to

         25  thank my colleagues. It was a great team effort, and
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          2  we really do appreciate you helping us save what's

          3  left of what's good about Staten Island.

          4                 CHAIR BURDEN. Thank you. Thank you,

          5  Councilman.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Council Member

          7  Quinn.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Thank you, Mr.

          9  Chair.

         10                 I have some questions I will follow

         11  up with your staff on, but just quickly I'd like to

         12  say I would love to be one of the Council members

         13  who is included with Council Member Gioia and

         14  others  --

         15                 CHAIR BURDEN: Of course.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: As you work on

         17  the manufacturing issues. I think the person who

         18  came from Manhattan to Eric's district may have come

         19  from my district when we were relocating printers

         20  after a rezoning there.

         21                 I wanted to talk just for one second

         22  to ask you a question about the community facilities

         23  zoning issue that we're dealing with today, and

         24  what's happening today is really an unbelievable

         25  credit to the Chair and to the Commission that we're
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          2  able to have action relatively quickly on what I

          3  hope is the first step of our look at community

          4  facilities, and really the question I wanted to ask

          5  you was whether you as the Chair see today's action

          6  as the first step, and whether you anticipate there

          7  will be a second and maybe even a third round.

          8                 Obviously, some of the issues I'm

          9  most concerned about in my district relate to

         10  universities and larger facilities like that,

         11  hospitals, et cetera, so universities is really the

         12  challenge we've grappled with most and what we're

         13  doing today is very important but doesn't capture

         14  those type of facilities. So, do you see a second

         15  step, and about how long would you see that in the

         16  future?

         17                 CHAIR BURDEN: Well, there are two

         18  lessons from this effort and reforming the community

         19  facilities zoning text: Which is, one, partnership

         20  with the Council, which is absolutely essential.

         21                 And, two, it's given us a clear

         22  realization of how complex this is, and how strong

         23  the voices are on every side, and we have to go step

         24  by step.

         25                 And we have always said that this
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          2  would be the first stage, and we would very much

          3  like to talk to you about how you would envision

          4  reforming community facility text in other areas as

          5  we proceed. But this is definitely the first step,

          6  and I think that's what Chair Avella and I have been

          7  telling the folks out there again and again, if we

          8  can't do this, we won't be able to do anything. So,

          9  we understand there's a real issue out there, both

         10  from the needs of communities and the needs of

         11  community facility providers and working together

         12  with the Council is the only way to do this, and I

         13  look forward to it.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Thank you very

         15  much.

         16                 I do want to say the Chair has always

         17  been very, both the Chair of the Subcommittee and

         18  the Chair of the full Committee have been very clear

         19  to the folks in my district and other people in

         20  other parts of the City who have other community

         21  facility issues that this was step one. I just

         22  didn't want to miss the opportunity to get it on the

         23  record again.

         24                 Thank you very much, and we look

         25  forward to working with you as this issue moves
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          2  forward.

          3                 CHAIR BURDEN: Thank you, Council

          4  member.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: In addition,

          6  Council member, to the Chair of the City Planning

          7  Commission committing herself, I'm committed myself,

          8  so don't worry. We're going to move on this.

          9                 Council Member McMahon.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Thank you,

         11  Chairman Avella.

         12                 And Chairwoman Burden, I just want to

         13  say what a great breath of fresh air your

         14  Administration and the City Planning Commission has

         15  been, and your Chief of Staff, Richard Barth, and

         16  the Staten Island crew led by Len Garcia Duran and

         17  James Miraglia, and of course, Kirstie Utila

         18  (phonetic), have really been wonderful. And we want

         19  to thank you for what we've done. We also want to

         20  thank Chair Avella, Chairwoman Katz and the staff at

         21  the City Council Land Use Division.

         22                 From the first moment we met I think

         23  we in Staten Island tried to make it clear to you

         24  how important this issue was, how vital it was,

         25  critical. And certainly my colleague, Jim Oddo,
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          2  deserves a heck of a lot of credit for being able to

          3  have that tenacity to get it to the Mayor's

          4  attention, and to really precipitate the changes

          5  that we have here today.

          6                 And as he said, this issue is

          7  critical for Staten Island, is critical for the rest

          8  of the City of New York, and of course, given my

          9  tendency for hyperbola, you know, you remember when

         10  Winston Churchill was thinking about the victories

         11  in Northern Africa and how important they were to

         12  ultimate victory, but what he said then was, "it's

         13  not the beginning of the end, it's not the beginning

         14  of even the middle, but perhaps the beginning of the

         15  beginning."

         16                 And the point I make with that is

         17  this: We have accomplished a lot. We will do that in

         18  our votes in the next two days, three days, but the

         19  problem still goes on. As we sit here now there are

         20  commercial overlays that are being jammed pack with

         21  housing being built to the property line, people

         22  calling my office and saying, wait a minute, if the

         23  new zoning, downzoning is in effect, how can they

         24  build like this? And the reason is that the

         25  commercial overlays still present a problem, a
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          2  drastic problem, and something has to be looked at

          3  and the teardowns still go on.

          4                 So, we commend you, we congratulate

          5  you, we thank you, but we urge you to understand

          6  that this is still a very much unfinished task, and

          7  we express to you our resolve to see that it gets

          8  done as quickly as possible.

          9                 Thank you.

         10                 CHAIR BURDEN: I couldn't agree with

         11  you more. I just want to thank both Council Members

         12  Oddo, McMahon, both of you, for pressing this issue

         13  but working with us diligently, because every single

         14  component of the Lower Growth Management text is

         15  complex and has two sides to it and we still have

         16  areas we haven't covered, such as the commercial

         17  overlays.

         18                 But I think you both know how

         19  strongly the Mayor feels about this and has

         20  instructed us to move quickly. He believes, as I

         21  know you do, that preserving our neighborhoods is

         22  essential, and the character, which is not to

         23  destroy, not to allow overdevelopment, inappropriate

         24  development, to destroy what made those

         25  neighborhoods appealing and attractive in the first
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          2  place. And a key part of the Citywide economic

          3  development strategy is preserving those

          4  neighborhoods, and I think you both agree, and so we

          5  have begun. I'm sure Churchill had a good phrase for

          6  it, but we won't be deterred and we haven't finished

          7  and we recognize that, absolutely.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Council Member

          9  Felder.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Thank you,

         11  Chair Avella.

         12                 According to my calculation, I have

         13  two and a half minutes left of the ten minutes that

         14  the Chair can remain, and I'd like to use all of it.

         15                 I just wanted to thank everybody that

         16  wasn't thanked before who worked on this.

         17                 I want to echo what everyone else

         18  said, and, namely, I figured that if I didn't say

         19  anything, you would think that I didn't appreciate

         20  the work that you and your Department were doing,

         21  since all my colleagues said something.

         22                 I just, for the record, wanted to

         23  echo everything everybody else said.

         24                 Thank you.

         25                 CHAIR BURDEN: Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you,

          3  Commissioner.

          4                 CHAIR BURDEN: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I

          5  wish I could stay for all of it, but I'm sure you

          6  understand.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: That's all right.

          8  We appreciate it.

          9                 CHAIR BURDEN: But you're in good

         10  hands.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: We will now

         12  proceed to staff, Richard, in terms of community

         13  facilities.

         14                 And then procedurally what we will do

         15  is we will hear the public testimony on community

         16  facilities, then we will go to the growth management

         17  staff testimony, and then we will hear the public

         18  hearing on that, and we'll do similarly for Hunters

         19  Point as well.

         20                 MR. BARTH: Thank you, Mr. Chair.

         21                 With me is Ken Bergin, who has been

         22  the Project Manager on the City Planning side for

         23  this text amendment.

         24                 I would like to echo Chairperson

         25  Amanda's comments about what a terrific partnership
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          2  this has been, to enable us to get to this text

          3  amendment that satisfies so many competing

          4  interests. It has not been easy and we're really

          5  glad to make it to this point.

          6                 I'd like to turn this over to Ken

          7  Bergin, to briefly just describe the elements of the

          8  community facility zoning text amendment, and then

          9  I'll be glad to answer any questions you may have.

         10                 MR. BERGIN: Thank you, Richard.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Before you start,

         12  could somebody close the door in the back because

         13  there's a little bit of a disturbance. Thank you.

         14                 MR. BERGIN: Chairman Avella, Council

         15  members, thank you.

         16                 The community facility proposal has

         17  three main parts. It addresses Land Use issues with

         18  health care facilities, parking for houses of

         19  worship, and permitted obstructions and required

         20  rear yards.

         21                 Let's go through each one of those

         22  briefly. Just to start, for health care facilities,

         23  ambulatory, diagnostic and treatment health care

         24  facilities would replace an array of health care

         25  uses listed in the zoning resolution today, and it
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          2  would allow an array of health care practitioners,

          3  in addition to medical practitioners.

          4                 The ambulatory facilities would be

          5  prohibited from locating R 1 and R 2 districts, and

          6  in other one- and two-family house districts, R 3A,

          7  R 3 1, R 3B -- R 3X, I'm sorry. R 4A, R 4B, and R 4

          8  1 districts, ambulatory facilities would be

          9  permitted as of right up to 1,500 square feet of

         10  floor area, and up to 10,000 square feet of floor

         11  area by special permit of the Board of Standards and

         12  Appeals. And that's not a change in the floor area

         13  ratio for community facilities in these districts,

         14  it's simply a cap on the amount of floor area that

         15  would be permitted on large lots, for example.

         16                 Cellar space that's not used to

         17  storage would count for the parking requirement for

         18  ambulatory health care facilities, and these

         19  facilities would be permitted to locate above the

         20  level of the first-story ceiling in buildings

         21  without residential uses. So, if there were

         22  residential uses, the requirements that we have

         23  today, or similar to those requirements would remain

         24  in place, namely these medical facilities would be

         25  limited to locations below the level of the first
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          2  story ceiling, except if there was a separate access

          3  to a second story.

          4                 In commercial and manufacturing

          5  districts, the ambulatory facilities would have the

          6  same parking requirements as professional offices,

          7  under current regulations and commercial districts.

          8  Of course, health care facilities below the level of

          9  the first-story ceiling have no parking

         10  requirements. This is a significant change.

         11                 And as I mentioned before, the cellar

         12  space would count for the parking requirement, if it

         13  was used for something other than storage.

         14                 For houses of worship, we would, of

         15  course, change "churches" to "houses of worship" to

         16  reflect the diversity of the City. And the parking

         17  requirements for houses of worship would be based

         18  upon the rated capacity of the largest room of

         19  assembly, rather than the current standard which is

         20  fixed seats. Parking would be required in R 1

         21  through R 5 districts, and the current parking

         22  regulations for houses of worship in $ 6 and R7-1

         23  and R7 B districts would be eliminated under the

         24  proposal as these districts are typically mapped

         25  near transit.
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          2                 There would be other modifications to

          3  houses of worship, to provide them with certain

          4  flexibility to meet the parking requirement. Namely,

          5  parking would be permitted, required parking would

          6  be permitted off-site, and in addition, there would

          7  be a new special permit to allow houses of worship

          8  to reduce the demand for parking, depending upon how

          9  they're operated or utilized.

         10                 And the Commission, on July 28th,

         11  made certain modifications for the parking

         12  regulations for houses of worship, that Amanda

         13  Burden mentioned earlier. The ministerial process

         14  would be added in the proposal to allow houses of

         15  worship that are locally oriented to wave parking

         16  requirements.

         17                 In addition, the BSA special permit,

         18  I mentioned just a few moments ago, would be

         19  clarified so that the Board could waive or reduce

         20  required parking based upon their operational use,

         21  and additional language would be added to the

         22  permit. Factors would be added that the Board could

         23  rely on in order to reduce or waive parking under

         24  that permit.

         25                 Another significant change that was
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          2  adopted by the Commission on July 28th would leave

          3  intact the current regulations for houses of worship

          4  and adult establishments.

          5                 Under the current regulations, as you

          6  know, adult establishments cannot be located within

          7  500 feet of a house of worship, and under the

          8  proposal the Department had recommended a reduction

          9  in that 500 foot buffer, but the Commission based on

         10  further analysis that the staff did, the Commission,

         11  put back in or left intact the current 500 foot

         12  buffer, which I might add is not a further

         13  restriction, it's simply the current regulation.

         14                 The railyard obstruction regulations

         15  would be amended also. Under current regulation,

         16  community facilities are not permitted to obstruct

         17  the required rear yard in R 1 and R 2 districts. And

         18  under the proposal that prohibition would be

         19  extended to all one- and two-family house districts.

         20                 And in residents' districts that

         21  allow multiple dwellings, community facilities would

         22  not be permitted to obstruct a required rear yard,

         23  beyond 100 feet of a wide street, unless that

         24  facility was a house of worship for school, a

         25  university or a hospital-related facility.
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          2                 Two additional changes. The proposal

          3  would also require that parking lots for community

          4  facilities, which have a parking lot ten or more

          5  spaces in our one through our five districts, would

          6  meet and be screened by planting buffer rather than

          7  by a wall or a fence, which is the current

          8  regulation to better reflect the character of low

          9  density districts.

         10                 And houses of worship would be

         11  permitted as of right in the M 1 manufacturing

         12  districts. The current special permit would be

         13  eliminated under the proposal.

         14                 And finally, under the proposal as

         15  approved by the Commission, the maximum permitted

         16  Floor Area Ratio for community facilities located in

         17  C1 and C2 districts, that a map as overlays (sic) in

         18  R 3-2 districts, would be increased from 1 FAR to

         19  2.0 FAR, and the parking requirements on the second

         20  floor would be adjusted for community facilities so

         21  that there would be the same as community facilities

         22  located in the R3-2 district.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you. First

         24  of all, just so everybody understands, in terms of

         25  the houses of worship, there has been an existing
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          2  loophole, which is driving residential communities

          3  absolutely bonkers, and you briefly mentioned it,

          4  about the fixed seating.

          5                 Because the zoning code said that if

          6  you have fixed seating you must provide parking,

          7  they've been getting around it by not bolting the

          8  chairs or the pews to the floor.

          9                 That loophole will be eliminated once

         10  and for all as part of these changes, and I think we

         11  just need to make that clear.

         12                 One of the things that both City

         13  Planning and the Council, we have listened very

         14  carefully to the public review process and public

         15  comment process, and that led to an agreement which

         16  you made the modifications to a hearing, we've also

         17  had continuing discussions about how we can tighten

         18  up some of the issues in the community facilities

         19  text, and I'd like to go over some of the things

         20  that we're still talking about.

         21                 MR. BARTH: Absolutely.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: One of which is,

         23  there was a great deal of confusion, and you alluded

         24  to it briefly during your testimony about the 10,000

         25  square feet that's allowable by BSA permits, and I
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          2  think we just need to speak for the record that

          3  there are no restrictions now in those districts.

          4  They can build any amount. This is actually putting

          5  a restriction on them and not allowing to build

          6  greater than what they could normally do, correct?

          7                 MR. BARTH: That's correct.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: For some reason

          9  there was a lot of confusion about that. That is one

         10  issue that came up a lot during the public hearing.

         11                 MR. BARTH: We heard that a lot, and

         12  it's unrestricted in size today in these districts.

         13                 The proposal would cap the

         14  as-of-right I believe 1,500 square feet. To go

         15  larger than that would be by special permit up to

         16  10,000. But that 10,000 is well under what you can

         17  do as of right today. And the BSA findings for that

         18  specifically relate to traffic and neighborhood

         19  character.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: One of the other

         21  issues was that, and we all agreed to do this, is

         22  make the amendment for the religious institutions

         23  that live where the congregants (sic) live in the

         24  immediate area.

         25                 I think one of the things that we

                                                            39

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  feel very strongly about is that we don't want to

          3  create another loophole that in effect is as big as

          4  the fixed seating, non-fixed seating issue was in

          5  the first place. So, once we approve these text

          6  changes, how are we going to make sure that there is

          7  a procedure in place where a house of worship would

          8  have to prove that 75 percent of their congregation

          9  lives within three-quarters of a mile? How are we

         10  going to do that actually in practice?

         11                 MR. BARTH: Because as of the text

         12  amendment that we have jointly agreed to,

         13  establishes an ministerial, administrative process,

         14  to establish whether one is a local house of

         15  worship, meaning that most of their congregates

         16  would likely walk to work, and the parking

         17  requirement would not be appropriate.

         18                 I think the point you raise is very

         19  well, how does that thing get implemented. In our

         20  discussions we believe that rule-making, City

         21  Planning undertaking rule-making jointly with the

         22  City Council to be able to establish the specific

         23  rules for implementing the zoning text.

         24                 I think that, we both believe is the

         25  best way to go here. And we will work closely with
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          2  you on that.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Finally,

          4  increasing the bulk in the commercial overlay zone,

          5  from one to two, I mean that was an issue that was

          6  brought to our attention, it is a concern for some

          7  of us. And I know I asked you to take another look

          8  at that and possibly come up with something that we

          9  could both agree on, and I think we have some sort

         10  of a compromise, I'd like you to mention what it is?

         11                 MR. BARTH: Absolutely.

         12                 We did take a very close look at it

         13  after we met. The proposal in the text now would

         14  increase the FAR for these facilities in R 3 2

         15  overlays from 1 to 2 FAR, and there are overlay

         16  districts with R 3 2.

         17                 The rationale for that was that by

         18  restricting them so significantly in the one- and

         19  two-family districts, provide space for these needed

         20  facilities to locate.

         21                 But we took another look at it and

         22  believe that reducing the 2 FAR down to say 1.6,

         23  would work -- I think it accomplishes the goals

         24  while respecting the other goal of not overburdening

         25  any particular area from undue traffic or undue
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          2  size.

          3                 1.6 FAR would produce at most the

          4  building, looking at other examples of how these

          5  facilities have been developed, buildings with

          6  probably three stories, there's a parking

          7  requirement that can't be waived, and the 2 FAR

          8  would be excessive and we concur with that.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Questions from

         10  Committee members?

         11                 Council Member Katz.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: My understanding

         13  is the 1.6 FAR was ultimately what we probably would

         14  have ended up with anyway. I mean, that was the

         15  reasoning behind that.

         16                 MR. BARTH: On typical size lots,

         17  because the parking requirement, which is one space

         18  per 400 square feet, they tend not to put the

         19  parking underground. It tends to be surface parking.

         20  So, just a typical size rectangular lot, 1.6 is

         21  usually what's achievable at the maximum. It's what

         22  we've seen in the R 4 and R 5 districts.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: And we

         24  appreciate the fact that we're going to give

         25  obviously the criteria of the rule-making authority
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          2  to the City Planning Commission.

          3                 MR. BARTH: Yes.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: But that you

          5  will work with the Council in order to set the

          6  criteria and standards with which a religious

          7  institution is able to get an exemption, because

          8  three-quarters of the congregation was 75 percent --

          9  75 percent of the congregation lives within

         10  three-quarters of a mile.

         11                 Do you have a timing on that, about

         12  how long those regulations will take?

         13                 MR. BARTH: We are ready to roll up

         14  our sleeves tomorrow and start working with you, and

         15  I'm advised it takes about six months to implement,

         16  a six-month process.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: So, out of

         18  curiosity, what happens between now and then, if a

         19  religious institution applies for a permit?

         20                 MR. BARTH: City Planning will have to

         21  quickly develop standards for the application, in

         22  terms of the information that's required. At a

         23  minimum it would be the congregants (sic), it could

         24  be a map, an address of how many, to demonstrate how

         25  many live within a three-quarter mile radius, and

                                                            43

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  would use those, but I think use the rule-making to

          3  further elaborate on those standards, in terms of

          4  more specificity. And I think the rule-making would

          5  be helpful to establish, so that there's no

          6  ambiguity in the standards that are applied.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Just for

          8  clarification. This also came up at many of the

          9  community meetings, and especially with the

         10  organizations: The original exemptions for parking

         11  are still intact, which is why they're not addressed

         12  here, for instance, under 97 people in a

         13  congregation and so on. The original piece of

         14  legislation that calls for those exemptions for the

         15  smaller, you know, usually in my district there are

         16  synagogues, small houses of worship, they are still

         17  intact?

         18                 MR. BARTH: That's correct. It's good

         19  to make that point clear, that roughly in the R 3

         20  districts it's 94 rated capacity. There is no

         21  parking requirement in the R 4 and R 5 district, so

         22  I believe it works out to 142 rated capacity,

         23  there's no parking requirement. It gets waived under

         24  existing provisions. So, for the small religious

         25  institutions, there is not even a ministerial
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          2  process to come through. The ministerial process is

          3  if they don't meet those initial waivers.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: We appreciate

          5  the work you did on this. Thank you.

          6                 MR. BARTH: Thank you very much.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Council Member

          8  Felder.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Thank you very

         10  much. I want to thank, since Melinda was the only

         11  one to thank, now I can thank everybody whose been

         12  involved in this process. It's been complicated,

         13  trying to address some of the concerns to many

         14  communities.

         15                 I just have one question. As an

         16  example, if you have a house of worship that has

         17  capacity for 500 people, 75 percent whom live within

         18  three quarters of a mile, what's the parking

         19  requirement?

         20                 MR. BARTH: Okay, the way the text

         21  amendment has been drafted, it's for larger

         22  facilities. Even the 75 percent that live within

         23  three-quarters of a mile, under the ministerial

         24  process, that parking would be waived.

         25                 For the 25 percent that lives beyond
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          2  three-quarters of a mile, so 25 percent of 50 -- 500

          3  is 150 -- 125. Thank you.

          4                 Ken, do you want to?

          5                 MR. BERGIN: If I may? It's 75 percent

          6  of the 500, and maybe somebody could do the math,

          7  375 would be subtracted from 500.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Which is 125?

          9                 MR. BERGIN: Which is 125.

         10                 So, if you were in an R 4 or an R 5

         11  district, for example, you would waive out. There

         12  would be no parking in that condition.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: And if you

         14  were not --

         15                 MR. BERGIN: If you were in the R 1

         16  through R 3, you would have a parking requirement

         17  based upon the 125.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Which would be

         19  about 12 --

         20                 MR. BERGIN: Thirteen actually. It

         21  would round up to 13, 13 spaces.

         22                 MR. BARTH: Now, that facility would

         23  also be eligible to apply to the BSA to further

         24  reduce that parking requirement.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Right. No, the
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          2  question was not a trap. And if it became one, then

          3  I'm delighted, because it makes me smarter than I

          4  am.

          5                 But the only point that I was trying

          6  to make is that everything that was done to make

          7  this legislation good, and the accommodations are

          8  super duper, really, and we very much appreciate it.

          9  But some people happen to -- you know, I'm playing

         10  the other side. Some people have been saying that

         11  there's been a blanket exemption made, and that's

         12  absolutely not so, and you've just proven that, so I

         13  appreciate that.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Any other

         15  questions from Council members?

         16                 Thank you, gentlemen.

         17                 MR. BARTH: Thank you.

         18                 MR. BERGIN: Thank you.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: As far as I can

         21  tell, I only have one person signed up to speak on

         22  the public hearing on community facilities. Michael

         23  Slattery, from Real Estate Board. Is he here?

         24                 We're going to do them individually.

         25                 MR. SLATTERY: I would like to address
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          2  the issue that has to do with the encroachment into

          3  the rear yard section of the community facility.

          4                 There are exceptions to encroaching

          5  in the rear yard, and according to some of our

          6  attorney members, there is some concern that the

          7  distinctions that are being made there are not

          8  legally defensible and we continue to raise that

          9  issue with City Planning. I believe museums are

         10  exempt or not exempt and people believe that museums

         11  should be treated as other facilities. So, I just

         12  wanted to get that item on the record.

         13                 And we have some information that we

         14  can send out to staff to take a look at.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: And staff will be

         16  happy to do that.

         17                 MR. SLATTERY: Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.

         19                 If there is nobody else signed up to

         20  speak on this particular item, I will close the

         21  public hearing, and we will move on to staff

         22  testifying, further testifying about the Staten

         23  Island Growth Management Task Force.

         24                 MR. GARCIA DURAN: Good morning,

         25  Chair. I am Len Garcia Duran, Director of the Staten
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          2  Island City Planning Office. This is James Miraglia,

          3  the Project Manager for the Lower Density Growth

          4  Management Project.

          5                 As Commissioner Burden noted earlier,

          6  the recommendations of the Staten Island Growth

          7  Management Task Force represented and approved by

          8  Mayor Bloomberg this past December 2003.

          9                 From January through this past May of

         10  this year, members of the Task Force, including City

         11  Council members and their staff, continued meeting

         12  with our agency on a monthly basis to review draft

         13  rules and attempted to craft language that would

         14  address all the task force concerns and

         15  recommendations.

         16                 As you may well know, Staten Island

         17  has been the fastest-growing borough for the past

         18  decade. It's suburban lifestyle has attracted

         19  residents from across the City.

         20                 These very amenities that attracted

         21  new residents, the tree-lined streets and large

         22  homes and large lots were being threatened by the

         23  borough's very own success.

         24                 This new rules address several key

         25  areas:
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          2                 Stricter requirements for private

          3  road developments, increased parking requirements

          4  and higher standards for yards, open space and

          5  landscaping.

          6                 And the entire package of new rules,

          7  the Task Force and the Department of City Planning

          8  believe that their adoption will help preserve the

          9  very neighborhoods found on Staten Island.

         10                 This concept of a lower density

         11  management growth area and its associated rules were

         12  presented at the full City Planning Commission on

         13  May 24th, and referred out for public review.

         14                 During the past month of June, City

         15  Planning staff, specifically James Miraglia,

         16  presented these new rules to all three community

         17  boards on Staten Island, who overwhelmingly voiced

         18  their approval.

         19                 The City Planning Commission held a

         20  public hearing on July 14th where the Borough

         21  President James Molinaro personally testified in

         22  favor of these new rules.

         23                 On July 28th, the City Planning

         24  Commission voted to adopt these new rules and to

         25  designate the entire Borough of Staten Island, as
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          2  the first lower density growth management area.

          3                 If adopted by City Council, these new

          4  rules will be an additional layer of protection to

          5  existing residential districts.

          6                 As recommended by the Task Force a

          7  follow-up study is currently being conducted to

          8  address the rules for residential development,

          9  commercial districts and overlays.

         10                 Our agency, and more specifically, my

         11  office will continue to meet with the task force

         12  zoning committee to address these follow-up

         13  recommendations.

         14                 And Commissioner Burden thanks the

         15  Council members and the Borough Presidents for their

         16  passion and direction.

         17                 I would also like to add my thanks to

         18  their staff, Mike Arvenitis in Council Member

         19  McMahon's Office, Vinnie Denasio in Council Member

         20  Lanza's office, and Rob Polandra in Council Member

         21  Oddo's office. They've all become zoning experts

         22  over this past six months or so. And also I'd like

         23  to thank Bob Angler, the Borough President's Land

         24  Use Director, who has always been a zoning expert.

         25                 And with that, I'd like to introduce
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          2  James Miraglia, who will walk you through the new

          3  rules.

          4                 MR. MIRAGLIA: As Len said, the

          5  overall framework for the text amendment is based

          6  upon the lower density growth management area.

          7                 These would be defined as any R 1, R

          8  2, R 3, R 4A, R 4 1 district in Staten Island

          9  initially, as well as developments accessed by

         10  private roads in R 1 through R 5 districts in Staten

         11  Island.

         12                 The first way in which the text will

         13  affect the current regulations is the parking

         14  requirement. Presently you need one space per

         15  dwelling unit. The amendment will ask for two spaces

         16  for a single dwelling unit, three spaces per

         17  two-family, and above that, 150 percent parking

         18  requirement, so, in other words, if you had a

         19  ten-unit building, that would be 15 parking spaces.

         20                 The text will also ask that all

         21  parking, required parking be behind the front

         22  building line within garages and side yard

         23  driveways.

         24                 Also, the requirement for the minimum

         25  lot width for a two-family home will be increased
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          2  from today's current minimum of 18 feet up to 33

          3  feet, if you have a two-family home.

          4                 There will also be a requirement for

          5  tree plantings along the street frontage of all new

          6  construction, one tree per every 25 feet.

          7                 The text amendment will also affect

          8  the regulations concerning minimum distance between

          9  buildings.

         10                 Presently the minimum distance

         11  between buildings is 20 feet. We're going to

         12  increase that requirement to 45 feet between front

         13  buildings and rear buildings.

         14                 The rear building will also be

         15  required to have a 15 foot buffer between it and the

         16  side lot line of any adjacent zoning lot, and 30

         17  feet between it and any rear lot line of an adjacent

         18  lot, including rear lot lines that are oriented in

         19  this direction. So, that would be 30, 30, 30 and 15

         20  here. And, again, this would be a minimum of 45

         21  feet.

         22                 The rules also say that access to the

         23  rear buildings must be through the same zoning lot,

         24  not through another lot.

         25                 The text amendment will affect in
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          2  many ways the existing private road regulations, and

          3  under the existing text, private road regulations

          4  are not required for single-family developments.

          5                 The proposal will expand the private

          6  road regulations to all developments, including

          7  single family.

          8                 We're also going to expand the

          9  coverage of the private road regulations to include

         10  any project with more than two buildings located

         11  entirely beyond 50 feet from a public street,

         12  presently it's five buildings beyond 50 feet. So,

         13  the threshold has been lowered to capture more of

         14  these kinds of developments.

         15                 The regulations will also ask that

         16  all public street, yard and setback requirements be

         17  applied to private roads.

         18                 So, in other words, if you have a

         19  private road on a single zoning lot, you'll still

         20  need 30 feet rear yard, 18 foot front yards, if you

         21  have parking, and the maximum length of townhouse

         22  row could be 125 feet, as it is in the public road.

         23  Presently you can have a row of townhouses with

         24  unlimited with unlimited length. The townhouses

         25  would have to be, again, 125 feet long.
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          2                 We're also going to require an eight

          3  foot planting strip between the private road and an

          4  adjoining side lot line, a four-foot planting strip

          5  around parking areas, adjacent side lot lines too.

          6                 Currently under the private road

          7  regulations, your parking requirement can be counted

          8  of cars parked in the street. That is going to be

          9  taken away. All parking requirements will have to be

         10  on lot, within the buildings or within accessory

         11  parking areas.

         12                 To minimize traffic conflicts, we're

         13  also going to require that the curb cut for a

         14  private road has to be at least 50 feet away from a

         15  public intersection, so it can't be right on top of

         16  it causing traffic problems.

         17                 In order to enhance safety, all DOT

         18  standards for signage, lighting, crosswalks, et

         19  cetera, will have to be applied to private roads.

         20  They can't do their own thing anymore, it has to

         21  meet the City standards.

         22                 And also, finally, to improve the

         23  orientation on new developments through lots, we'll

         24  be required to have a 15 foot front yard and a 30

         25  foot rear yard. If that 30 foot rear yard faces a
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          2  public street, an eight foot landscape buffer will

          3  be required to screen and provide privacy for that

          4  rear yard.

          5                 Continuing with private roads, there

          6  is going to be an alternative parking arrangement

          7  allowed for Town House developments. Parking will be

          8  allowed to be counted in the street, if it's

          9  perpendicular parking such as this, which would

         10  provide full landscaped town house development. It's

         11  more of a suburban model. You can only have ten

         12  spaces in a row at max, separating by eight foot

         13  planting strips, that can be on both sides of the

         14  street, but it can't be opposite each other. So,

         15  this bank of parking was located here. You could do

         16  it that way as well, and it's just another

         17  alternative that might be able to have an increase

         18  in density for over 55 developments, et cetera,

         19  things like that.

         20                 The regulations are also going to

         21  affect the regulations concerning side yards and

         22  corner lots.

         23                 Presently, on a corner lot, you have

         24  two front yard requirements, and two side yard

         25  requirements, which could be as little as eight
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          2  feet.

          3                 On the corner lot we're going to ask

          4  that one side yard be 20 feet. The only building

          5  where this would apply is the actual building

          6  located physically on the corner, no longer 100 foot

          7  within corners.

          8                 If it's a single zoning lot, only the

          9  corner building or building segment, that's to have

         10  the 25th side yard, all others would require to have

         11  a 30 foot rear yard.

         12                 The zoning text will also affect

         13  regulations concerning garages and driveways.

         14                 Currently garages are often sunk in

         15  the cellar so they would not be counted as FAR. To

         16  alleviate that we're going to allow garages, at 300

         17  square foot FAR bonus for garages, and 500 square

         18  foot if it's a two-space garage. By doing that, the

         19  garages will actually be in basements or at street

         20  level, so they won't have a very, very steep

         21  driveway.

         22                 Additionally, the driveway slope

         23  can't be more than 11 percent, which is two feet

         24  over 18 feet.

         25                 To accommodate the two full stories
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          2  over a garage at street level, the perimeter wall

          3  height will be increased at 26 feet, versus the

          4  current 21 feet, but be aware that the maximum

          5  height is not going to change. It's still going to

          6  be a 35 foot maximum height on the building.

          7                 We're also going to change the

          8  regulations concerning the attic design rule.

          9                 Presently you can get a 20 percent

         10  increase, if you have a sloped roof. But the sloped

         11  roof is fairly shallow, a three and a half inch rise

         12  over 12 feet will give you the 20 percent in the

         13  future, except that the rise will be a seven inch

         14  over 12, which is a much more steeper roof that's in

         15  character with existing neighborhoods of Staten

         16  Island.

         17                 And finally, the proposed text will

         18  be affecting the flood plane rules. Presently your

         19  flood plane rules say that you have 25 feet height

         20  max on the perimeter wall from the height of the

         21  flood plane level, which in some areas of the City

         22  could be 20 feet. This causes buildings that are

         23  vastly out of character with the existing buildings.

         24                 The new regulations are proposing

         25  that you can take 21 feet above the flood level, or
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          2  26 feet from grade level, despite the flood plane

          3  level, and hopefully that will create buildings that

          4  are much more in context with the surrounding

          5  neighborhood.

          6                 Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: A couple of quick

          8  questions and then I'll turn it over. I know my

          9  colleagues from Staten Island have some comments.

         10                 The recommendations that we're

         11  suggesting, that you're suggesting for Staten

         12  Island, only apply to Staten Island at this point,

         13  correct?

         14                 MR. MIRAGLIA: That is correct.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: And that

         16  communities would then have to be rezoned under what

         17  we're calling now a growth management district, if

         18  they wanted to apply for these same restrictions or

         19  changes?

         20                 MR. GARCIA DURAN: Actually, it's not

         21  a rezoning, it's simply a text amendment.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Okay.

         23                 MR. GARCIA DURAN: And simply identify

         24  a specific community within the City that wants to

         25  have all of these rules added to their existing
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          2  rules.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: But it would have

          4  to be a separate application?

          5                 MR. GARCIA DURAN: Correct.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: We're already had

          7  some conversations about this that there are some

          8  things in there that we feel could go Citywide

          9  immediately.

         10                 So, I think that's something that

         11  we'd like to see, because as I previously mentioned

         12  to you, that for example, contextual zoning, it's a

         13  good thing to protect low density neighborhoods,

         14  we're still rezoning communities in the City of New

         15  York 15 years later under those categories.

         16                 I think the one thing that concerns

         17  me is this is a good thing for Staten Island, and

         18  there are many other parts of the City that could

         19  benefit from these new text changes, but we set up a

         20  procedure by which it's going to take a decade to

         21  get to some of these neighborhoods, we're going to

         22  be behind the 8 ball again. So, I would throw it

         23  back to City Planning to see what we can do

         24  immediately to take some of these recommendations

         25  that are certainly applicable Citywide, and do one
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          2  application for the entire City.

          3                 The one thing that strikes me

          4  immediately is the private road situation which is

          5  becoming a problem in every low density district.

          6  The developers are coming in, subdividing large lots

          7  and putting in these private roads and then putting

          8  in greater housing.

          9                 Council Member Oddo.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Just a quick

         11  thank you, and then two comments.

         12                 I just want to thank you guys on the

         13  local level on Staten Island for putting up with us.

         14  It was good fighting and arguing and debating and

         15  negotiating until we got a final product.

         16                 The second point is, I just want to

         17  make sure that the record is clear, in that every

         18  nuance, every discussion that Council Members Lanza

         19  and McMahon and the Borough President I had with

         20  City Planning was to address one concept and that

         21  was density.

         22                 So, I want the record to be clear, if

         23  there is ever anything open to interpretation at a

         24  later point and they question what the intent of all

         25  of us around the table was, our intention was to
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          2  find every way possible to inject sanity into the

          3  process to reduce density.

          4                 And lastly, I have to say to the

          5  Chairman, this is a package from the three Council

          6  members from Staten Island to our colleagues in the

          7  rest of the City as a way to show our good faith to

          8  you guys, that when I approach somebody in the

          9  Bloomberg Administration about this notion of a task

         10  force, one of the responses I got was, well, Jim,

         11  every borough would want it, and I said, well,

         12  that's a good thing. Well, I think this would be a

         13  great thing for the City, for these changes and

         14  other changes to be implemented across the City in

         15  your community and other communities. We hear our

         16  colleagues, and we hear our colleagues every Stated

         17  Meeting saying the same things about

         18  overdevelopment, so this is a little package to you

         19  guys.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Council Member

         21  McMahon.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Thank you,

         23  Mr. Chairman.

         24                 I wholeheartedly concur in the

         25  comments of my colleague, especially in terms of
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          2  clarifying for the record the thrust here is to

          3  limit density, and also to put some sort of sanity

          4  into the planning process and to close some of the

          5  loopholes, although we all know new ones will be

          6  found, and they'll be pushed to the maximum and

          7  taken advantage of and we'll continue to have to be

          8  vigilant.

          9                 If you could just clarify for me,

         10  Len, and you spoke about it a little bit, when these

         11  become applicable, is Staten Island now designated

         12  as a growth management area, and when the Council

         13  votes on these on Thursday they will be in effect;

         14  is that correct?

         15                 MR. GARCIA DURAN: That's correct.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: And anywhere

         17  else in the City that wants them to be applied to

         18  get that designation; is that correct?

         19                 MR. GARCIA DURAN: That's correct,

         20  also.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Well,

         22  certainly I would urge you that perhaps the

         23  Commission could send a letter to all Council

         24  members, advising them, maybe you can bring that

         25  back to Mr. Barth, advising them of the fact that
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          2  the vote that we take on Thursday only makes this

          3  applicable to Staten Island; however, it seems to me

          4  in a rather easy way this could be extended. There

          5  are certainly other residential parts of the City

          6  that would benefit from this as well.

          7                 We want to thank you guys again.

          8  Thank you, Mr. Chairman, and Chairwoman Katz.

          9                 And let me just also state for the

         10  record that the issue of private roads is one that's

         11  really not resolved by this. The expansion of

         12  residential development and the commercial overlay

         13  areas is, you're going to see when you designate

         14  this into your neighborhood, what will happen is the

         15  builders will then look to go into commercial

         16  overlay areas, tear down the businesses and put them

         17  in homes that don't have to go by the zoning and

         18  don't have to go by the rules, but go by commercial

         19  building, you know, no lot, side yards, buildings

         20  can touch and all those things, goes back to where

         21  we were before we did this.

         22                 But the issue of private roads I

         23  think still burns. I know we had bills in to do away

         24  with them. There's no reason for private roads to

         25  exist at all. They did not used to exist, and I
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          2  think that's something that we've spoken about and

          3  hopefully this Committee will continue to look at.

          4                 I just want to thank you guys and

          5  thank my colleagues. This is certainly a day that

          6  we've won a decisive battle, we have a long way to

          7  go before we win the war.

          8                 Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Council Member

         10  Lanza.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER LANZA: Thank you,

         12  Chairman.

         13                 I just want to take this opportunity

         14  to thank some of the folks who have brought us here

         15  today. Let me begin with you, Chairman Avella,

         16  Chairwoman Katz, the Land Use Committee, certainly

         17  to the Staten Island City Planning Office, both of

         18  you, James Miraglia and Len Garcia Duran, for your

         19  tireless work. Chairman Burden, obviously the Mayor,

         20  I think it's the first Mayor we've ever had who has

         21  the word or the term "overdevelopment" in his

         22  vocabulary and that's a good thing, and that's in

         23  part why we're here.

         24                 Certainly my colleague, Councilman

         25  Oddo, for really focusing the Mayor's attention on

                                                            65

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  this and allowing us to have this forum, I want to

          3  thank you. And to both of my colleagues, really, it

          4  has been a privilege to be part of the Staten Island

          5  Council Delegation. Both Councilman McMahon,

          6  Councilman Oddo, your leadership on this

          7  overdevelopment issue has been tremendous, has been

          8  inspiring, and I am privileged to be a part of it.

          9                 And I am encouraged. This is, I

         10  believe, Councilman McMahon said a beginning, he

         11  said that in the past, that this is just in the

         12  beginning, but I am encouraged by this beginning. If

         13  this is any indication of where we're going, I think

         14  once and for all we're on the road to finally

         15  addressing this, perhaps the most important quality

         16  of life issue, at least on Staten Island, at least

         17  with respect to overdevelopment. And I think this is

         18  a very comprehensive plan to begin to address that

         19  problem, and I know we're on our way to finally

         20  addressing it and solving that issue. Which really,

         21  overdevelopment, in a term as Councilman Oddo said,

         22  establishing, clarifying the legislative intent

         23  here, there's a slogan that says, "the economy

         24  stupid. Well, on Staten Island it's "the density

         25  stupid." And I think it's important that we
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          2  establish and clarify the legislative intent here,

          3  but I just want to thank you all for bringing this

          4  to this point.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Any other

          6  questions from Council members?

          7                 Thank you.

          8                 MR. GARCIA DURAN: Thank you.

          9                 MR. MIRAGLIA: Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: We have two

         11  people signed up to speak.  The first one is a

         12  representative from the Staten Island Borough

         13  President's Office, Robert Englert. Did I pronounce

         14  it right?

         15                 If anybody is here for the Landmarks

         16  Subcommittee, it's being held in the Chambers next

         17  door.

         18                 MR. ENGLERT: Good morning, Chair

         19  Avella, and distinguished Council members. My name

         20  is Robert Englert. I am the Director of Land Use for

         21  Staten Island Borough President James P. Molinaro. I

         22  am here today to put forth testimony on behalf of

         23  the President, President Molinaro, in support of the

         24  Lower Density Growth Management Text Amendment.

         25                 The approval of the new Lower Density
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          2  Growth Management Text Amendment is the most

          3  significant event to directly affect Staten

          4  Islanders, since the opening of the Verrazano

          5  Narrows Bridge and the closing of the Fresh Kills

          6  Landfill.

          7                 These unprecedented zoning rules are

          8  the first major zoning changes to directly affect

          9  our borough in 43 years. The approval of the Borough

         10  of Staten Island as the first Lower Density Growth

         11  Management area in the City of New York will forever

         12  preserve our quality of life, respect and promote

         13  our existing neighborhood character, and will

         14  protect and foster the built environment for all

         15  Staten Islanders without sacrificing our small town

         16  USA ambiance.

         17                 Last summer, at the urging of Council

         18  Member James Oddo, Mayor Bloomberg announced the

         19  formation of the Staten Island Growth Management

         20  Task Force.

         21                 The Task Force was charged with

         22  examining the issues surrounding haphazard and

         23  inappropriate development and ask to identify short

         24  and long-term solutions, as well as possible

         25  legislative changes that could protect the character
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          2  of the existing neighborhoods, and enhance the

          3  quality of life throughout the borough.

          4                 Within 120 days the recommendations

          5  were submitted to and accepted by the Mayor. The

          6  concepts of this proposal have also been supported

          7  by the Staten Island Chapter of the American

          8  Institute of Architects, and the Building Industry

          9  Association of New York City.

         10                 This proposal has since been approved

         11  unanimously by all three community boards, the

         12  borough board and my office.

         13                 On July 28th, it was approved

         14  unanimously by the City Planning Commission and

         15  forwarded to this body for final review.

         16                 The approval of this amendment will

         17  make our streetscapes wider, our borough greener,

         18  and will provide much needed additional curbside

         19  parking.

         20                 The amendment thrives on increased

         21  open space planning which will highlight better

         22  quality site design, and greater respect for local

         23  neighborhood character.

         24                 Since becoming Borough President, I

         25  have constantly challenged the conventional rules
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          2  and interpretations of the agencies charged with

          3  enforcing our zoning and building code regulations.

          4                 These agencies are the guardians of

          5  the standards that establish the concept of what our

          6  neighborhoods are. They are also the entities that

          7  protect our general help, safety and welfare, as

          8  well as the future of our built environment.

          9                 It is within these venues that we

         10  must strive for interpretations and enforcement of

         11  regulations that are clear, concise and presented in

         12  a fashion that can be understood and applied by

         13  everyone.

         14                 The common goal of growth management

         15  is to put forth these new rules in that easy speak

         16  fashion.

         17                 I have been the most outspoken

         18  proponent of this concept of simple language

         19  regarding the implementation of the proposed text

         20  and today will be no different.

         21                 The concepts formulated by the growth

         22  management task force were vetted and proposed to

         23  consistently ensure everyone certain quality of life

         24  standards.

         25                 These concepts have been unanimously
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          2  endorsed by each community and the industries that

          3  they affect.

          4                 There should not be dual meanings or

          5  multiple interpretations of the text. A particular

          6  rule evolves with a common sense goal set as the

          7  standard. The concept of this standard must become

          8  the guiding light that nurtures the interpretation

          9  and implementation of the final law.

         10                 Our neighborhoods cannot wait for

         11  government to wade through unclear language

         12  ultimately be told that the safeguards be sought do

         13  not apply on rainy days. It is the responsibility of

         14  all concerned agencies to work harmoniously together

         15  toward a common goal but uphold the standards

         16  envisioned by the task force.

         17                 I would like to highlight the

         18  standards of three such visions. All new buildings

         19  shall provide two off-street parking spaces for a

         20  one-family dwelling, and three spaces for a

         21  two-family dwelling.

         22                 All developments shall provide

         23  sidewalks and street trees along all frontages where

         24  buildings are proposed.

         25                 All rear yards or spaces behind homes
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          2  shall be 30 feet minimum in depth.

          3                 These simple concepts will set a

          4  minimum standard that every Staten Islander will be

          5  able to rely on.

          6                 Imagine a street scape where there is

          7  ample space for guests to park their car, where your

          8  children and their friends can play in their own

          9  back yard, and where everyone has the right to a

         10  leisurely summer walk on a sidewalk along that tree

         11  lined street that they call home.

         12                 Having said this, the concept of 30

         13  foot rear yards on all buildings, with the exception

         14  of corner lot buildings, must become the rule, not

         15  the exception.

         16                 The zoning lot structure and creative

         17  tax lot structure should have no bearing on the

         18  intent of the law, or how the concept is interpreted

         19  and enforced.

         20                 I appeal to Chair Burden and

         21  Commissioner Lancaster to once and for all

         22  coordinate the interpretation of the law with the

         23  vision perceived by its creators.

         24                 For this text to make a difference we

         25  must collectively subscribe to the belief that
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          2  inappropriate and haphazard development will have no

          3  place between the lines of the growth management

          4  text.

          5                 The effort of the Department of City

          6  Planning, embodied in this amendment, represents the

          7  next step in the continuing effort to discourage

          8  overdevelopment.

          9                 This step could not have been

         10  realized without the dedication of many people.

         11                 First and foremost, I must

         12  acknowledged Mayor Michael Bloomberg for his

         13  concern, commitment and leadership in helping us be

         14  here today.

         15                 I also want to acknowledge the

         16  efforts of Council Members James Oddo, Andrew Lanza

         17  and Michael McMahon, and former senior advisor to

         18  the Mayor Vincent LaPadula.

         19                 I want to thank the members of the

         20  Growth Management Task Force, including Department

         21  of Buildings Commissioner Patricia Lancaster and

         22  Staten Island Borough Commissioner Jorge Canepa, who

         23  worked tirelessly to develop a common sense solution

         24  for the people of Staten Island.

         25                 I would also like to acknowledge the
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          2  Staten Island Advance who hammered the point home

          3  every day, with coverage spanning every aspect of

          4  our accomplishments.

          5                 Lastly, I would like to offer my

          6  personal gratitude to Amanda Burden, Chair of the

          7  Department of City Planning, whose vision and

          8  cooperation made this text change possible.

          9                 I also acknowledge Executive Director

         10  Richard Barth, Staten Island Director, Len Garcia

         11  Duran, and the other members of the City Planning

         12  for their dedication, creativity and

         13  professionalism.

         14                 This concept of growth management is

         15  unique. So unique that it befits Staten Island, to

         16  become the template for other boroughs to follow.

         17                 After all, uniqueness is a monitor

         18  that the City's greenest borough wears proudly.

         19                 I encourage everyone to embrace this

         20  proposal and support its approval. The approval of

         21  this amendment will give us one more tool to better

         22  manage development and preserve and reinforce the

         23  traditional neighborhood character of Staten Island.

         24                 Thank you for your opportunity to

         25  address this Committee.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.

          3                 Council Member Oddo has a point to

          4  raise.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Thank you, Mr.

          6  Chairman.

          7                 Bob, I just want to thank you

          8  personally. I'm proud of the fact that you were one

          9  of my three appointments to the Task Force, and,

         10  frankly, I don't know if there was a member of the

         11  Task Force as important to you in the overall

         12  outcome. I want to thank you for your expertise. And

         13  I also want to get on the record, if you're not the

         14  MVP then James Molinaro was, and this Borough

         15  President did a fabulous job, and they had many

         16  meetings that were quote, unquote, off the record in

         17  Borough Hall with all of us to hammer out the final

         18  plan.

         19                 I just want to make something very

         20  clear, and I want to get it on the record. Both in

         21  your capacity as a Task Force member and now working

         22  for the Borough President, it's the intent of all of

         23  us that every house, with the exception of corner

         24  lots, every house has a 30-foot back yard; am I

         25  correct in that?
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          2                 MR. ENGLERT: Yes.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Is there any

          4  ambiguity? Is it clear, or as Jack Nicholson said in

          5  A Few Good Men "crystal." It's crystal clear. That

          6  is the intent of every Task Force member, 30-foot

          7  back yards for every structure with the exception of

          8  corner lots, crystal clear?

          9                 MR. ENGLERT: Not crystal clear. The

         10  intent is crystal clear.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: The intent is

         12  crystal clear.

         13                 The not crystal clear part comes in a

         14  subsequent interpretation.

         15                 MR. ENGLERT: Yes.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: All right. So, I

         17  just want to put on the record, Mr. Chairman, and I

         18  thank you for your indulgence, the intention of all

         19  of us sitting around the table was for 30 foot back

         20  yards, with the exception of corner lots. So, when

         21  folks, if it ever comes to pass, want to look at the

         22  legislative record and look at the intent, the

         23  intent is crystal clear.

         24                 And I hope folks who subsequently try

         25  to interpret this abide by what all of our
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          2  intentions were.

          3                 Thank you.

          4                 MR. ENGLERT: Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: The last speaker

          6  on this item is Dr. Charles Talley. Is he here?

          7                 Okay, if there's nobody else here to

          8  speak on this item, I will close the public hearing,

          9  and we will move to City Planning staff discussing

         10  Hunters Point.

         11                 From this point on, when we have the

         12  public hearing aspect of it, we will be putting

         13  people on the three-minute clock. We do still have a

         14  number of items to go through today, and we will be

         15  taking a vote on these items, so it is extremely

         16  important that we move ahead expeditiously where

         17  possible.

         18                 MR. YOUNG: Good morning, Chair

         19  Avella, members of the Land Use Committee. I'm John

         20  Young, I'm Director of the Queens Office of City

         21  Planning, and I'm here with the staff who have been

         22  working on the Hunters Point Rezoning Study for the

         23  Department, Neil Galiardi, who is the Project

         24  Manager, and Jed Weiss.

         25                 I'm honored and very pleased to
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          2  present the Department of City Planning thoughtful

          3  and fine-grained rezoning proposal for the Hunters

          4  Point neighborhood in Long Island City, Queens.

          5                 The proposal represents an important

          6  update to the area's zoning, regulatory framework,

          7  to ensure a better balance between encouraging

          8  appropriate development and ensuring the endurance

          9  of the unique character of the neighborhood.

         10                 Hunters Point is an urban riddle

         11  starting with its name and whether it should be

         12  spelled with an apostrophe or not. For the purposes

         13  of simplicity, we're a nothing more. Our reference

         14  is the neighborhood, omit the apostrophe.

         15                 It is a neighborhood with remarkable

         16  heterogeneity, striking juxtapositions, iron scrap

         17  yards adjacent to two-story masonry row houses. Yet,

         18  is a neighborhood of relatively uniform scale and

         19  similar looking streetscapes that can disorient the

         20  unfamiliar visitor.

         21                 The repetitive street names don't

         22  help, as anyone who has searched for an address

         23  among 45th Road, and 45th Avenue, can attest.

         24                 And it is a neighborhood that is

         25  stagnating, thriving or doing just fine, depending
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          2  on who you ask.

          3                 It's arrival has been heralded

          4  repeatedly over the last two decades. Most recently

          5  this June, in a large feature Newsday, the question

          6  whether despite these earlier claims, if indeed now

          7  is the time for the area to be the next big thing.

          8                 Certainly Hunters Point is poised for

          9  change. It is strategically situated between Queens

         10  West, on the East River shore, and the Court Square

         11  Hub in the transit rich area the Department

         12  designated the Long Island City Corps in 2001.

         13                 These adjoining areas are plan for

         14  dramatic transformations with striking new large

         15  scale residential and commercial developments.

         16                 For example, not only has the Queens

         17  West Waterfront recently been cleared of the former

         18  Pepsi bottling plant, but a new park and 4,000

         19  apartments will be part of the architecturally

         20  distinctive redesign of this new community arising

         21  on the Western edge of Hunters Point.

         22                 The planned Olympic Village will

         23  similarly transform the area to the south. Again,

         24  this was just recently announced as the selected

         25  entry. It's actually going to produce the Point,
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          2  making it publicly accessible that Hunters Point is

          3  named for.

          4                 Yet, without the zoning changes that

          5  are currently before the City Council, the

          6  well-established character and patterns of

          7  development within Hunters Point may not be prepared

          8  for the influence exerted by the large redevelopment

          9  surrounded.

         10                 The area's special zoning regulations

         11  are generally more than two decades old, developed

         12  prior to the implementation of the plans for the

         13  surrounding area and they do not adequately provide

         14  for buffers and transitions from the adjoining high

         15  density area.

         16                 Moreover, the current zoning

         17  regulations are extremely and unduly complicated,

         18  creating difficulties for current residents to

         19  improve their homes, and for businesses seeking to

         20  come to the area.

         21                 Presently, discretionary approvals

         22  are required in many instances for enlarging an

         23  existing residence or constructing new buildings.

         24                 Many new graphic designs, computer

         25  software development and arts-related firms are

                                                            80

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  prevented from locating and existing non-residential

          3  buildings because of the current zoning.

          4                 Located in Community District 2, the

          5  proposed zoning change encompasses all or portions

          6  of 43 blocks situated between the Queens west

          7  project site, and the court square subdistrict.

          8                 The rezoning area is bounded

          9  generally by Second and Fifth Streets on the West,

         10  44th Drive on the North, 23rd Street, Jackson Avenue

         11  and the Sunnyside Yard on the East and Borden Avenue

         12  in the Queens Midtown Tunnel on the South.

         13                 The proposal is focused only on the

         14  portion of Hunters Point that has traditionally

         15  harbored a closely intermingled step of residential,

         16  commercial and small, light, industrial businesses.

         17                 It recognizes that the area houses an

         18  important and growing arts and creative community,

         19  such as the PS 1 Contemporary Arts Center, and that

         20  over time businesses in Hunters Point have shifted

         21  from manufacturing to an array of semi-industrial

         22  and entrepreneurial activities, such as warehousing,

         23  construction companies and visual arts enterprises.

         24                 At the same time, as I mentioned

         25  earlier, current zoning place significant
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          2  restrictions and complex requirements on new

          3  residential construction and conversions, therefore,

          4  the zoning proposal embodies a more flexible zoning

          5  strategy based on sound objective planning

          6  principles that will:

          7                 - one, remove restrictions on

          8  residential development and conversion and allow a

          9  broad array of uses throughout the district in the

         10  midblock, as well as the major corridors;

         11                 - retain light manufacturing

         12  businesses while supporting the growing

         13  entrepreneurial activities restricted by current

         14  zoning.

         15                 - three, retain existing scale of

         16  three- and four-story residential mixed use

         17  development within the neighborhood midblocks; and

         18                 - four, encourage new residential and

         19  mixed-use development at moderately higher

         20  densities, along wide streets close to public

         21  transit and adjoining the Long Island City core and

         22  Queens West.

         23                 This last point is particularly

         24  important to the residents who spoke at our advisory

         25  committee meetings and expressed concerns about
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          2  retaining the low-rise field to the neighborhood,

          3  especially on the narrow streets of the mid-blocks,

          4  while not exacerbating shortages of on-street

          5  parking.

          6                 The proposal, as shown on the map

          7  here, I'm going to just broadly describe it,

          8  implement zoning changes that are closely attuned to

          9  reflect the scale of notable building in the

         10  neighborhood.

         11                 The proposal would designate six

         12  mixed-use zoning districts and one residents zone,

         13  in order to promote a vibrant mix of housing, light

         14  industry, commercial enterprises and cultural

         15  activities at Hunters Point.

         16                 Specifically, it would create

         17  opportunities for about 300 housing units over a

         18  ten-year period, in new buildings that will blend

         19  into the area's fabric. There are presently about

         20  2,100 units in the neighborhood.

         21                 While continuing to allow light

         22  manufacturing uses, zoning changes would also allow

         23  a broad range of commercial uses, including stores,

         24  restaurants, artist studios, small theaters, custom

         25  printers and graphic design firms widely throughout
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          2  the neighborhood.

          3                 The mix of compatible uses will help

          4  create a more vital Hunters Point and create

          5  appropriate new housing opportunities, and stimulate

          6  business activity.

          7                 The proposed zoning is an opportunity

          8  to strike desirable balance between creating new

          9  housing opportunities and stimulating small business

         10  activity, and fortifying Long Island City's

         11  concentration of light industrial operations.

         12                 As I said earlier, the zoning

         13  proposal limits zoning changes to the Hunters Point

         14  neighborhood, which has always been characterized by

         15  mix of housing small businesses and light industrial

         16  activity.

         17                 The adjacent Hunters Point industrial

         18  core to the north and Sunnyside Yards east area

         19  retain their low-density-like manufacturing zoning,

         20  by clearly establishing an area with definable

         21  boundaries and edges and flexible mixed use zoning

         22  rules that match the predominant development

         23  patterns in Hunters Point. The proposal would

         24  reinforce these nearby low scale active-like

         25  manufacturing districts and help to safeguard them
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          2  from incursions of residential and office uses.

          3                 City Planning will continue to work

          4  closely with EDC, the Department of Small Business

          5  Services, the Long Island City Business Development

          6  Corporation, and local businesses to ensure that

          7  areas industrial precincts retain their high

          8  concentration of active-like manufacturing uses and

          9  employment.

         10                 In closing, I'd like to acknowledge

         11  that many others have contributed significantly to

         12  the proposal before you today, including the staffs

         13  in many divisions at City Planning, notably the

         14  entire Long Island City Planning team in the Queens

         15  office.

         16                 I would also like to express a debt

         17  of gratitude to the leadership at Community Board 2

         18  for their extensive and thoughtful input, Borough

         19  President Helen Marshall for her support, and, of

         20  course, the leadership of the City Council Land Use

         21  Committee for their invaluable guidance, and in

         22  particular, Council Member Eric Gioia and his staff

         23  for their focus and suggestions.

         24                 Hunters Point is an important

         25  component in the large and complex mosaic that is
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          2  Long Island City.

          3                 The rezoning proposal that is before

          4  you values the intrinsic qualities of the

          5  neighborhood and recognizes its tremendous potential

          6  as a vibrant community possessing lively sidewalks

          7  lined with apartments, commercial enterprises and

          8  small light industrial firms.

          9                 These sidewalks will link a

         10  redeveloped waterfront at Queens West with an

         11  emerging business and mixed use hub at Court Square.

         12                 The rezoning builds upon the planning

         13  efforts for these surrounding areas, but ensures

         14  that the unique pattern of development and wide mix

         15  of uses will continue to distinguish Hunters Point

         16  as a bright element within the Long Island City

         17  mosaic.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Council Member

         19  Gioia.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: Thank you, Mr.

         21  Chair.

         22                 And thank you, John, and thank you

         23  all, City Planning staff, for being here today and

         24  also for the hard work you've done over the past, I

         25  guess it's been about a year, two years. Time flies.
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          2                 I mentioned this earlier but

          3  different people are in the room so I think parts of

          4  it I will be reiterating, and even if I didn't say

          5  it this morning, you've heard me say it a number of

          6  times.

          7                 One, I think Long Island City is just

          8  the best patch of land left in New York City,

          9  perhaps in the entire world, and it's a place that's

         10  ready for an economic renaissance.

         11                 When I grew up in Queens, the

         12  waterfront, you couldn't call up the Pepsi plant and

         13  say, hey, can I go hang out by the water in Long

         14  Island City. And my long-term vision for the

         15  waterfront in Queens, and I think many of us in this

         16  room share that, you'd be able to go from Brooklyn

         17  and Newtown Creek all the way up to the Triborough

         18  Bridge, the way you're able to go on the west side

         19  now and go job and bike. And I think that it's a

         20  remarkable place, not only for new businesses like

         21  Citigroup and Metlife, but also for pioneers, big

         22  pioneers like Silver Cup Studios, and smaller

         23  pioneers like Sal Ansolone and his restaurant, and

         24  other people who have been in Long Island City for a

         25  very long time.
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          2                 We have an opportunity over the next

          3  decade to really shape this area of New York City

          4  and make it a place where you have both businesses

          5  and residential and good schools and easy access to

          6  all points in New York.

          7                 That being said, as we begin to look

          8  at it, it presents many challenges.

          9                 I'm sure today we'll hear people

         10  testify that it's not bold enough and that it

         11  doesn't go high enough. We'll have others testify

         12  that it's too bold and it goes too high. We'll have

         13  some say that it does too much to push out

         14  manufacturing and others will say it doesn't do

         15  enough to promote housing.

         16                 And in nowhere do I think it's a

         17  perfect plan. It's hard to please everyone all the

         18  time, but there are some issues that I do want to

         19  raise with you because I think they're important,

         20  and I don't know that you actually touched on them.

         21                 I mentioned first with the Chair,

         22  first, I'm not exactly sure the right procedure to

         23  get this into the record, but it's the August 5th

         24  letter from Chair Burden to me, describing the

         25  commitment that had been made by City Planning to
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          2  continue a study or to begin a new study of the

          3  Vernon Boulevard corridor, as well as another block,

          4  the 47th Road block, where we'll have a number of

          5  people testify, and in fact, in her testimony I

          6  think Chair Burden furthered that and also committed

          7  to the timetable of beginning that some time this

          8  fall. And I'm just going to continue with, but just

          9  to let you know that's one thing I would like you to

         10  speak on.

         11                 And I'd like to read this letter into

         12  the record, or actually submit it into the record,

         13  I'm not sure the procedure. I'll submit it into the

         14  record, so that it is part of our hearing.

         15                 And that's been a main concern of

         16  mine, because as we begin to develop Long Island

         17  City, and you and I have spoken about this, and I've

         18  spoken to a number of people who have testified,

         19  it's very important. And we're going to bring a lot

         20  of people in, whether it be the Olympic Village or

         21  the 300 units you talk about or further development

         22  along the waterfront, a lot of new people, and I

         23  think that's good, and I think they'll bring a new

         24  energy and a vibrance to the neighborhood.

         25                 But, you know, as someone whose
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          2  family has been in Queens for about 103 years, I

          3  think it's of paramount importance that we do not

          4  displace long-term residents.

          5                 In fact, in no way do I want to

          6  create a bifurcated Long Island City with long-term

          7  residents not being taken care of or well positioned

          8  and other along the Fifth Street building 50-story

          9  buildings, and a number of residents have come and

         10  spoken to me and I've advocated on their behalf to

         11  you, and I think that this agreement to study that

         12  is a step forward, and part of that compromise.

         13                 The second concern I have had in

         14  dealing with this, and I would like you to speak on

         15  this as well, is manufacturing. And I've made clear

         16  my position on this in many venues, in that I think

         17  manufacturing, the story that troubles me the most,

         18  and I think maybe the gentleman will testify here

         19  today, is someone who was pushed out of Manhattan

         20  five years ago because of rezoning and different

         21  market mechanisms in Manhattan, different market

         22  taking shape and put to Queens.

         23                 Okay, well, that's rough. But he's

         24  been able to put it together, has been able to move

         25  on with his business.
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          2                 But should he now be pushed out of

          3  Long Island City, and then onto somewhere else, it

          4  begins to put really an unfair burden on business.

          5  And what I would like to see is really a Citywide, a

          6  five-borough plan, to attract and retain

          7  manufacturing in an industrial base in New York.

          8                 I mean, I think that all of us can

          9  recognize that not only in the past four years, but

         10  over the past 40 years or over the last half

         11  century, the marketing mix, the economic mix in New

         12  York City, the manufacturing base has dwindled.

         13                 Some of that is maybe beyond our

         14  control and I think we probably have much longer

         15  discussions about what the healthy percentage of a

         16  manufacturing mix in the New York City economy is,

         17  but I'm sure that all of us will also agree pretty

         18  quickly that manufacturing in industrial has to be a

         19  part of New York City's economy and an important

         20  part.

         21                 And I think what has to happen is for

         22  us to be able to come up with these designated zones

         23  in five boroughs where we can tell someone, listen,

         24  here's continuity. If you move your business here,

         25  we're not going to touch this for X amount of years,
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          2  and we can debate whether that's 15 years or 20

          3  years or whatever it is, I'm happy to co-sponsor

          4  that legislation with some of my colleagues here,

          5  put that before the Council to create those zones,

          6  to give those business owners the real continuity,

          7  to give them the assurance that they can actually

          8  make capital improvements in their business, and not

          9  be pushed out shortly thereafter.

         10                 And I think that's not only important

         11  for New York City, but I also think it's important

         12  for Long Island City.

         13                 The reason is is that absent that

         14  policy, Long Island City becomes the only

         15  conversation, and this proposal, which you'll have

         16  to remind me exactly how many firms this

         17  specifically rezones, but it becomes the argument

         18  of, well, it's creating an upward pressure on rents

         19  and making it more difficult for the manufacturers

         20  here, and absent a wider policy, people who will

         21  make that argument all right, in that if there's not

         22  a Citywide policy, then, well, we've got to kind of

         23  catch if you catch can and protect everyone one at a

         24  time.

         25                 I don't think that's necessarily
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          2  productive for the manufacturers, nor do I think

          3  it's productive for the City and I certainly don't

          4  think it's productive for people who have waited a

          5  very long time for Long Island City to finally

          6  develop.

          7                 So, I'd like you to talk about both

          8  the City's plans regarding manufacturing, and also

          9  some of what we have done, some of our discussions

         10  and what you have done to try to accommodate some of

         11  the long-term residents who have been there.

         12                 And, you know, the third thing, I

         13  really would -- you know, Mr. Chair, I have a

         14  picture in my office of New York Magazine, it's

         15  actually I have the actual New York Magazine, I

         16  think it's August 20 something, 1976. So, it's

         17  almost 30 years ago, and it's a front-page story,

         18  and it says "Long Island City: The Next Big Thing."

         19  And I don't want to have that conversation in two

         20  decades.

         21                 And I think it's particularly telling

         22  that we have this discussion about Long Island City

         23  on a day that we discuss protecting Staten Island,

         24  and the down-zoning of Staten Island.

         25                 I represent areas that also need
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          2  that, as probably do you, Mr. Chairman, areas like

          3  Woodside, where the zoning probably allows too much

          4  development right now for what the neighbor can

          5  take, whether it be because of parking, because of

          6  schools, and so, how can I sit here and tell you I

          7  think that we're probably going to have to downzone

          8  parts of Woodside, when I recognize that we have a

          9  terrible affordable housing crisis in this City.

         10                 Well, the answer to that, I think, is

         11  partly the work that we're going to be doing, not

         12  only with this rezoning, but over the next decade in

         13  Long Island City. And that I think part of it is, is

         14  encouraging this mixed affordable market housing on

         15  the waterfront. And as we begin to recapture the

         16  waterfront, I think we probably can give incentives

         17  to those who build neighborhoods in the sky for

         18  various families with various income levels, and

         19  that's one of the ways I think we can make that

         20  argument that we can actually downzone portions of

         21  Queens while also increasing the affordable and

         22  middle income housing stock.

         23                 So, you can address any or all parts

         24  of that, but particularly I really would like you to

         25  focus on manufacturing and some of the discussions
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          2  we have had and some of the commitments from EDC and

          3  your office, and also what your office was prepared

          4  to do, to make whole and write some of the long-term

          5  residents.

          6                 And thank you, again, for your hard

          7  work.

          8                 MR. YOUNG: Sure. Thank you, Council

          9  Member.

         10                 Actually we're going to start,

         11  there's a diagram we're going to show you that again

         12  shows the area for the follow-up study. And while

         13  Neil is producing that, I just will talk in general

         14  then about the notions of the concerns of the

         15  long-term residents. Because when we began this

         16  study we had a number of community advisory meetings

         17  out there in locations and one of the key things

         18  that they told us, in terms of the striking things,

         19  was that there are residents that remember when the

         20  zoning was changed in 1961. And this was designated

         21  a light manufacturing district, and what an

         22  injustice that was because it didn't recognize the

         23  2,100 units of housing that were already there, and

         24  it sort of presupposed that eventually the policy

         25  was to displace them and develop light industry.
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          2                 So, over the time since then there's

          3  been a lot of struggles as to how to figure out how

          4  to recognize and support the residential community,

          5  that's been a long-term part of the mix of uses in

          6  Hunters Point, and one of the clearest things that

          7  they told us were that banks were confused by

          8  existing zoning and they couldn't find out whether

          9  to get a refinance of their mortgage, as the banks

         10  weren't sure that they were allowed legally to have

         11  a residence there. So, the new zoning is going to

         12  clarify that. It's going to be mixed use zone that

         13  clearly will have a residential district, paired

         14  with a light manufacturing district. It's a little

         15  technical, but it is something that is a clear

         16  precedent that we've had experience with and it

         17  clarifies the whole notion should residential use,

         18  in terms of financial instruments, in terms of

         19  people trying to invest in a property, be allowed.

         20  It clearly indicates that it is.

         21                 In addition, there are a whole set of

         22  land uses that currently are restricted in many

         23  locations, so it gives the residents there a lot

         24  more options with what they can do with their

         25  property.
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          2                 Right now it's a very narrowly

          3  defined use that still builds upon the direction

          4  that was set in 61, which was not to allow the

          5  residential and the related commercial activity to

          6  support residentially broadly throughout this area

          7  of Hunters point. Now that can be the case.

          8                 So, shops, restaurants, cafes,

          9  anything from the ground floor that would be

         10  amenable to the residents, a dry cleaners, would now

         11  be allowed widely throughout the area. It hasn't

         12  been the case under the current rules.

         13                 And then in terms of displacement.

         14  What we really tried to balance here were the

         15  notions of not creating incredibly large changes in

         16  the density, which would then send a signal to the

         17  market, that broad swathes, particularly of the

         18  mid-blocks, were primed for redevelopment, which

         19  were threatened, because many of these are just one-

         20  or two-family occupants in their homes, threatened

         21  these with the potential for redevelopment and

         22  replacement with new housing.

         23                 Because there really is a concern

         24  that what we can do best is reflect the character

         25  for the side streets, which is where mainly the
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          2  residents are, and make sure that what occurs there

          3  isn't at such a great disparity and threaten those

          4  homes with reconstruction, redevelopment, just

          5  enlargement of those existing homes, and target new

          6  buildings where there's Transit opportunities, where

          7  there's vacant sites that new development could

          8  occupy.

          9                 So, it really is trying to

         10  strategically target growth into the areas that it

         11  can support, allow enlargements on the existing

         12  residences but not overwhelm them with great

         13  pressures of further displacement by large scale new

         14  development.

         15                 And that notion of guiding the market

         16  and sending a clear signal to the market, in terms

         17  of the residential strategy here, is also in the

         18  manufacturing strategy.

         19                 We definitely want to make clear

         20  distinguished boundary lines where this zoning

         21  stops, where the area for mixed uses are the

         22  predominant character, and those areas where light

         23  manufacturing activity is concentrated and would

         24  continue to be supported by current City policy and

         25  hopefully further City policy. We mentioned them.
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          2  There is an area north of 45th Drive, the Hunters

          3  Point industrial core, there is a large area to the

          4  east of the Sunnyside Yards which really acts as a

          5  strong buffer, where there is a whole stock of

          6  buildings, one and two story, low-profile buildings,

          7  good loading, unloading for trucks and trucks then

          8  have ready access to the Long Island Expressway.

          9  That really is an area that we want to continue to

         10  draw bright circles around and make sure that there

         11  are no policies that would undermind the light

         12  industrial uses there.

         13                 So we certainly look forward to

         14  working with you and elucidating these areas and

         15  those boundaries where clearly policy is going to be

         16  long-term light industrial support.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: Okay, thank

         18  you.

         19                 Just on the second point, you know, I

         20  think as I look at that area, and you mentioned, you

         21  mentioned the Sunnyside Yards and other areas over

         22  there, I actually think the Sunnyside Yards, which

         23  actually other than the MTA there is not industrial

         24  going on in the Yards itself, and, so, the yards are

         25  a blight on Long Island City and Queens, I mean it
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          2  cuts off Woodside and Sunnyside from the tip of Long

          3  Island City, and as anyone who tries to drive from

          4  the waterfront to Woodside or Sunnyside, maybe I

          5  make that drive more than anybody else, but it's

          6  really hard to get from place to place for such a

          7  short period, such a short distance.

          8                 And this is why I always have to

          9  bring it into a five-borough discussion, and a

         10  Citywide discussion, because the truth is, if we

         11  were to take all of Long Island City, the 37 square

         12  blocks that were rezoned two years ago, that 43

         13  blocks that we're looking at today, the Olympic

         14  Village, you know, there was no residential and we

         15  put all of it as manufacturing and that was all the

         16  City did and it wouldn't be enough and it wouldn't

         17  be appropriate, it wouldn't be good for the people

         18  who live in Queens, Long Island City or for the City

         19  as a whole.

         20                 I would suggest, and I think this is

         21  the discussions that we've had and will continue to

         22  have, I would suggest the questions are something

         23  like this:

         24                 One, not even what is the

         25  manufacturing industrial base in New York City
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          2  today, what is the manufacturing industrial base

          3  that we want this City to have?

          4                 What is the appropriate, economic mix

          5  in New York City's economy?

          6                 I think that's the first question.

          7  And the second question then is, well, once we

          8  determine what that number is, how do we now create

          9  zones around the City that provide jobs and provide

         10  continuity and provide an ability for these business

         11  owners to really make informed, intelligent

         12  decisions?

         13                 And I think when we have that

         14  discussion, without that discussion, then all of a

         15  sudden, you know, if we were to look at the

         16  Sunnyside Yards, and just for arguments sake, I hate

         17  to even bring up a topic of the West Side of

         18  Manhattan, but just for argument's sake, should

         19  someone get the desire to put the Jets in Queens on

         20  the Sunnyside Yards, well, if we did that, I mean

         21  all of a sudden we'd be putting all of this pressure

         22  on manufacturing and it would be inappropriate,

         23  because we would be hurting already a dwindling

         24  base.

         25                 But if we had the five-borough plan
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          2  and the Citywide, then we would say looking at that,

          3  and looking at all five boroughs, we would say, you

          4  know, Sunnyside Yards, we probably could do better

          5  there, and we probably could platform that, and we

          6  probably could have an intermodal station and make

          7  this a really, a regional economic hub, and maybe we

          8  don't have the money today, and maybe we won't have

          9  the money in ten years, but this is ideal, and this

         10  is New York City for the first half of the 21st

         11  century, and that's the kind of planning I know you

         12  would like to engage in, as would I.

         13                 And just to reiterate, I think that's

         14  only possible if we are taking care of a very

         15  important sector of the economy in creating these

         16  new zoning zones -- zoning zones, well, you know

         17  what I'm saying, zones guaranteed to be industrial

         18  manufacturing Citywide, providing enough space to

         19  sustain what we think is a healthy manufacturing

         20  industrial mix for New York City's economy.

         21                 Thank you. I don't know that there's

         22  a question there.

         23                 Listen I never speak this much at

         24  hearings, but because this is Long Island City. You

         25  know, thank you for your indulgence.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I just want to

          3  sort of back up very quickly on what Council Member

          4  Gioia said. I don't know if I heard an answer.

          5                 Is City Planning doing a Citywide

          6  study in terms of preserving the manufacturing base

          7  of the City?

          8                 MR. YOUNG: The City is doing a study,

          9  it's really coordinated through the economic

         10  development corporation and the Department of Small

         11  Business Services, we certainly are trying to work

         12  with them, but clearly the announcement is going to

         13  be done through the Mayor's Office, and it's really

         14  going to be through the work that the Economic

         15  Development Corporation has been leading the way on.

         16                 But it will be a five-borough policy.

         17  It will talk about existing programs, and further

         18  strategies to consolidate this phase.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Is there any

         20  timetable for that completion of that study?

         21                 I mean, I know you're not the lead

         22  agency.

         23                 MR. YOUNG: I believe the timetable is

         24  imminent for its completion. I can't be more

         25  specific than that.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: Well, the one

          3  thing on that, though, is based on the

          4  Commissioner's testimony and previous conversations,

          5  the imminence of this, it will first be done with

          6  consultation of members of this Committee and some

          7  of the people sitting here.

          8                 MR. YOUNG: Precisely.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Any questions

         10  from other Committee members?

         11                 Thank you.

         12                 We'll now move to the public hearing

         13  aspect of this item.

         14                 We have a number of people signed up

         15  to speak, and I'm going to call them in terms of

         16  panels for and against.

         17                 The first panel will be Adam

         18  Friedman, Jennifer Gibson, Stuart Gilbert. I have

         19  also here somebody signed up from the Municipal Arts

         20  Society, but they didn't indicate in favor or

         21  opposition.

         22                 MR. BARWICK: Mildly in favor.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Moderately in

         24  favor.

         25                 Jennifer Gibson, is she here?
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          2                 Stuart Gilbert. Please step up. The

          3  Sergeant-At-Arms will take that.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Mr. Chair, are

          5  these all for or against?

          6                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: These are all

          7  against.

          8                 Jennifer, are you in favor or

          9  against?

         10                 MS. GIBSON: Against.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Against. Okay,

         12  please take a seat.

         13                 Adam, please go. Push the button.

         14                 MR. FRIEDMAN: Thank you.

         15                 I'm Adam Friedman, Director of

         16  Industrial Retention Network.

         17                 As you've heard from Director Burden,

         18  the rezoning of Hunters Point is part of a dramatic

         19  transformation of Long Island City into a modern

         20  office district.

         21                 Hunters Point is the land bridge

         22  between the new CBD and Queens West.

         23                 Some day the office glut that now

         24  exists in New York is going to disappear, and New

         25  York City will need more office space and Long
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          2  Island City, because of its infrastructure, because

          3  of its proximity to Manhattan, is a great location

          4  for that.

          5                 The problem is, Long Island City is

          6  also New York City's heartland. There's more than

          7  26,000 industrial jobs in the Long Island City zip

          8  code. It is home to some of the most creative

          9  competitive manufacturers in New York City. So, the

         10  bad news is the emergence of that CBD puts those

         11  jobs at risk.

         12                 The good news is, it doesn't need to

         13  be that way. Long Island City can have both a strong

         14  CBD and a strong industrial sector. It needs new

         15  zoning tools to better target that development.

         16                 Let's just go to the first map that

         17  I've handed out as part of my testimony.

         18                 This shows the density and location

         19  of 2,000 industrial jobs in Hunters Point, and in

         20  some way it really understates it because of the

         21  software.

         22                 In the lower left-hand corner, that's

         23  pink, and along Fifth Street it's also pink, those

         24  blocks are solid industrial blocks.

         25                 You turn to the second map, it puts
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          2  Hunters Point in context. It shows the density and

          3  location of industrial jobs throughout Long Island

          4  City.

          5                 It is literally bursting. Many of the

          6  companies that manufacture the components that go

          7  into elevators and service elevators are located

          8  here.

          9                 Many of the companies that build sets

         10  for Broadway, and the curtains and the draperies are

         11  all clustered here. Many of the bakeries that

         12  produce for the City's restaurants and the hotels

         13  are clustered here. Now, only Hunts Point (sic) is

         14  being rezoned, this entire area will be impacted.

         15                 How is that the case? Every time

         16  there is a zoning change, this is we believe the

         17  second in a series of zoning changes, it sends a

         18  message, and you heard that message here today.

         19  Every time there's a press release announcing a

         20  corporate relocation, it presents a new vision for

         21  Long Island City of the dramatic transformation, of

         22  the new CBD.

         23                 And property owners respond

         24  regardless of where they are in the map, regardless

         25  of where the finely tuned, finely grained lines are
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          2  drawn, they convert their space, they put their

          3  tenants on month-to-month leases and they raise

          4  rents.

          5                 The City hasn't signaled the market,

          6  it hasn't sent a message that some of this area is

          7  preserved long-term for industrial use.

          8                 If you go to the next page, it has

          9  just two slides that say something about the quality

         10  of jobs and who holds those jobs.

         11                 The first chart indicates these jobs

         12  pay really well. Particularly in contrast to

         13  retailing and restaurants. The other sectors often

         14  pointed to as employment alternatives.

         15                 They're very, much more likely to

         16  provide health coverage.

         17                 The bottom chart shows you who works,

         18  something about the demographics, who works there.

         19  More than 83.5 percent of the population gauged in

         20  production is minority.

         21                 So, what's to be done? New zoning

         22  tools are needed, and we're specifically here

         23  recommending creation of industrial of employment

         24  districts, which would be an overlay that could be

         25  mapped on existing end zones.
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          2                 An industrial employment district

          3  would allow the assembly, the transformation, the

          4  warehousing, the storage of physical products,

          5  that's really what's critical here. Other

          6  activities, such as waste transfer or super stores,

          7  which really have nothing to do with manufacturing,

          8  would be allowed by special permit. The impact would

          9  be (a) that message, sending that message; and (b)

         10  the stability that Council Member Gioia described

         11  earlier, the stability manufacturers need to invest

         12  and to create jobs.

         13                 Where might it be located? Where

         14  might it be mapped? The City's eight industrial

         15  parks we think are the starting grounds, the

         16  starting areas for that. Areas that the City has

         17  already committed to preserving for industrial uses.

         18                 If it was mapped in parts of Long

         19  Island City -- I'll wrap up here -- if it was mapped

         20  in parts of Long Island City, the Hunters Point

         21  rezoning could move forward without the risk, and

         22  we've included text of an industrial employment

         23  district.

         24                 As was raised earlier, the City

         25  undertook a study of the industrial sector,
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          2  confirming much of what we said about the

          3  relationship between Land Use and industrial jobs.

          4                 It strikes me that if the City has

          5  new programs in there to help retain jobs or help

          6  companies relocate, they should have been in place

          7  before the zoning took place, before this new zoning

          8  was launched.

          9                 Let me conclude by urging the City

         10  Council to push City Planning to move forward to

         11  create this new type of zoning. The issue, the need

         12  to better target development, to preserve other

         13  areas, is going to arise again and again and again

         14  in north Brooklyn, on the far west side, in Jamaica,

         15  in the South Bronx.

         16                 Communities and the Council should

         17  not be put in the position of having to choose

         18  between jobs and housing. They deserve both.

         19                 Thank you. And they can have both.

         20                 MS. GIBSON: Good morning. Thank you

         21  for the opportunity to testify before you today.

         22                 My name is Jennifer Traska Gibson,

         23  and I represent the Brooklyn Economic Development

         24  Corporation, a 25-year-old non-profit community

         25  development organization, with a mission to create
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          2  and expand economic opportunities throughout

          3  Brooklyn.

          4                 BEDC supports entrepreneurialism in

          5  Brooklyn by providing a variety of real estate,

          6  training, counseling and financing activities to

          7  over a thousand clients per year.

          8                 BEDC is a member of the Zoning for

          9  Jobs Coalition and supports the creation of

         10  industrial employment districts in the City.

         11                 We are therefore asking the City

         12  Council to reject City Planning rezoning proposal

         13  for Hunters Point, until City Planning commits to

         14  developing the industrial employment district

         15  mechanism and conducts the appropriate studies for

         16  implementing IEDs in key industrial neighborhoods.

         17                 While the rezoning proposal under

         18  discussion today is specific to Queens, it has

         19  important implications for the entire City and

         20  Brooklyn, in particular.

         21                 In the absence of a comprehensive

         22  Citywide policy on industrial growth and retention,

         23  which is needed, it is important that the City uses

         24  the tools already at its disposal, like zoning, to

         25  ensure balanced growth and a stable economy of the
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          2  future.

          3                 Using an industrial employment

          4  district zoning tool will help to protect and

          5  preserve the industrial sector by designating

          6  specific appropriate areas for new and light

          7  industry and manufacturing in the City, encouraging

          8  stability and limiting real estate speculation.

          9                 City support for the manufacturing

         10  sector is important because it is still one of the

         11  largest employment sectors in New York City today

         12  and the third largest in Brooklyn.

         13                 While the manufacturing sector as a

         14  whole continues to slowly contract, there is a

         15  viable sector of small niche manufacturers producing

         16  high value added goods, such as prepared food

         17  products, critique apparel and custom furniture,

         18  that are thriving but need affordable long-term

         19  space.

         20                 In fact, 96 percent of New York City

         21  manufacturers are locally-owned small businesses.

         22  Because of residential and office conversions and

         23  rezoning, key small manufacturers are being squeezed

         24  out of many parts of the City.

         25                 Many others are forced to leave the
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          2  City entirely or shut down because they can't find

          3  suitable space.

          4                 Studies show that real estate is the

          5  number one barrier for manufacturing businesses in

          6  New York City.

          7                 This sector is important because it

          8  provides living wage jobs for the significant

          9  percentage of City residents who do not have college

         10  degrees, or may have limited English proficiency.

         11                 Support for the manufacturing sector

         12  also helps diversify the City's economic base and

         13  decreases the City's dependency on the financial

         14  insurance and real estate sector.

         15                 BEDC and the Zoning for Jobs

         16  Coalition recognizes City Planning's proposal for

         17  Hunters Point as a necessary step in updating the

         18  City's currently outdated zoning resolution.

         19                 We agree that zoning in New York City

         20  does not currently reflect the changing times, or

         21  actually uses in many parts of the City. However,

         22  before a significant change is made, like the zoning

         23  proposed for Hunters Point, the City Council must

         24  demand that City Planning introduce a mechanism to

         25  compensate for the industrial space that would be
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          2  lost through this rezoning.

          3                 By creating IEDs at the same time as

          4  rezoning away from industrial uses, the City would

          5  accommodate change while protecting small

          6  manufacturers, and the workers that they employ.

          7                 While we do not oppose the Hunters

          8  Point rezoning plan under discussion today, it would

          9  be a missed opportunity for the City Council to

         10  approve this proposal without an assurance that IEDs

         11  will also be created to preserve and support

         12  critical manufacturing areas in the City.

         13                 In conclusion, BEDC urges the City

         14  Council to set a precedent in Hunters Point.

         15                 We urge you to reject City Planning's

         16  proposal, unless City Planning commits to

         17  introducing zoning text creating IEDs within the

         18  zoning resolution as necessary steps are taken to

         19  establish these IEDs near Hunters Point and other

         20  parts of the City as appropriate.

         21                 Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.

         23                 I'm going to call up the next panel,

         24  and then while that's being done, I'm going to call

         25  on Council Member Katz.
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          2                 Stuart Gilbert, Kent Barwick, Paula

          3  Crespo and Thomas Paino.

          4                 Council Member Katz.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Mr. Chair, just

          6  one quick comment on the issue at hand.

          7                 I just want to make a comment because

          8  I do have to go, and I do thank the Chair's

          9  indulgence for allowing me to vote.

         10                 This is about Hunters Point. This is

         11  about a two-year study, and a great revitalization

         12  and redistrict, rezoning of this area and Hunters

         13  Point, which is vital to the community.

         14                 So, I jut wanted to sort of throw

         15  that out there, with the various discussions that we

         16  have had. Understanding Council Member Gioia's, also

         17  the panel's concern, about the industrial employment

         18  districts, which, by the way, I support

         19  wholeheartedly, I think it's a great idea, and I

         20  look forward to make sure that comes to fruition

         21  Citywide.

         22                 This, today, is about Hunters Point,

         23  and whether or not this rezoning is a good or a bad

         24  thing for the City of New York. So, on that note,

         25  that's my note on that.
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          2                 And Mr. Chair, as I discussed, I do

          3  need to go for about 40 minutes. I'm afraid I'm

          4  going to miss the vote if I'm going to do that. I'd

          5  like your permission to vote now?

          6                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Yes.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: I'd like to vote

          8  yes on all. The only thing I have not commented on

          9  is the Battery Park City Authority application,

         10  which I've met with the group several times, I do

         11  like that project. I think it's a good one for the

         12  City of New York and much needed for that area. I

         13  vote aye on all the agenda today. Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Before you go, I

         15  just wanted to -- I was saving my comments about

         16  community facilities for the end, but I did want to

         17  -- you know this has been a personal crusade of

         18  mine since I've been elected and I did want to thank

         19  you, as Chair of the Land Use Committee, for your

         20  support on community facilities. You know, people

         21  said it couldn't be done. I remember a number of

         22  political consultants saying to me we were stepping

         23  on the political third rail for even attempting

         24  community facilities reform, but we are here

         25  together. We got it accomplished with City Planning
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          2  and I appreciate your support on that.

          3                 MR. GILBERT: My name is Stuart

          4  Gilbert. I moved to Long Island City over 30 years

          5  ago from 268 Water Street under the Brooklyn Bridge

          6  when I was forced to move for redevelopment, and the

          7  same thing is happening today.

          8                 I'm here to speak in favor of the

          9  application of the Department of City Planning to

         10  upzone and allow residential development in parts of

         11  Hunters Point area.

         12                 I'm also here to tell you that they

         13  haven't gone far enough.

         14                 Anyone who is familiar with New York

         15  City's economy knows that over the last 50 years New

         16  York City has lost much of its manufacturing

         17  industry and at the same time, service trade has

         18  increased significantly to more than offset

         19  manufacturing.

         20                 In recent years, this trend has

         21  continued and accelerated. The result has been that

         22  many parts of the City are now inappropriately zoned

         23  for manufacturing use, and that such uses are

         24  scarce.

         25                 Furthermore, while Long Island City
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          2  and Hunters Point have long been held out as a

          3  remaining refuge for manufacturing, here too there

          4  has been manufacturing jobs lost and the change to

          5  more commercial activity in residential uses.

          6                 In addition, Citicorp and other firms

          7  are bringing in significant amount of potentially

          8  white collar managerial jobs that probably will

          9  outlast manufacturing.

         10                 In recent years, the City through

         11  it's Department of City Planning has recognized

         12  these changes in economic activity, enacting zoning

         13  changes creating the special Long Island City

         14  district and more recently enacting further zoning

         15  changes to encourage office building and greater

         16  retail activity along Jackson Avenue, as well as

         17  Northern Boulevard and Queens Boulevard.

         18                 Now the City, in order to support the

         19  previous action and to further revitalize the area,

         20  is suggesting new zoning changes to encourage

         21  residential development in parts of Hunters Point

         22  through the creation of mixed-use districts.

         23                 I think that this approach is

         24  appropriate. I do not believe they have exhausted

         25  the opportunities to encourage new residential
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          2  development through higher density sites.

          3                 In particular, I am concerned that

          4  while they have identified a number of areas for

          5  upzoning, the debris of upzoning and the proposed

          6  boundaries of these changes are not necessarily

          7  sufficient to achieve their goals.

          8                 As an example of this, I will focus

          9  on an area which I know well to an ownership

         10  interest in the property that I spotted and

         11  purchased when I was in the import business over 30

         12  years ago.

         13                 The City has proposed to change the

         14  zoning on most of the block fronts of 48th Avenue,

         15  between Fifth Street and Vernon Boulevard. They're

         16  proposing to change it from a manufacturing district

         17  to a mixed use district combining an M 1-4 zone with

         18  an R 7-A zone. This will allow residential use with

         19  an FAR 4, while still allowing manufacturing use to

         20  remain, if market conditions so dictate.

         21                 While this is appropriate, they

         22  neglect the fact that a number of the property on

         23  48th Avenue, which is a wide street, and a park

         24  across the street, continue through to 47th Road

         25  which is proposed to be rezoned to a lower density
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          2  mixed-use district 2 FAR.

          3                 This leaves the property in two

          4  different zones, which I have and which other people

          5  have, providing less incentives to create the

          6  residential use that is desired and make

          7  developments more difficult.

          8                 I understand that 48th Avenue is a

          9  wide street with park land developed on its

         10  southerly side, which makes it ideal for development

         11  at an increased density.

         12                 I also realize that 47th Road doesn't

         13  have those characteristics.

         14                 47th Road, however, already has

         15  existing residential use on it, more so, I believe,

         16  than 48th Avenue.

         17                 I think the City should be more

         18  supportive of this existing residential use by

         19  providing greater incentives to redevelop.

         20                 The simplest and most direct way of

         21  doing so would be to extend the proposed rezoning of

         22  M 1 4-R to R 7-A to 47th Road. I realize that this

         23  runs counter to the Department of City Planning's

         24  carefully crafted proposal. However, this is not

         25  inconsistent with their goals and what they are
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          2  trying just a few blocks away.

          3                 On Fifth Street, between 51st and

          4  59th Avenues, they are proposing to establish the

          5  same M1-4 R7-A zone. The Fifth Street in this area

          6  is also a narrow street. Just like 47th Road. And

          7  there is no park across the street here either.

          8                 If such density is inappropriate

          9  here, why not on 47th Road.

         10                 If the Department of City Planning is

         11  concerned that mapping at a higher density district

         12  on 47th Road they will somehow be threatening to

         13  residential uses there, they should remember that it

         14  isn't easy to relocate residents use, especially

         15  ones that are owner-occupied.

         16                 In conclusion, I support the rezoning

         17  intent, but they need to go further and not be so

         18  timid.

         19                 I request that the Borough President

         20  request that the Department of City Planning

         21  reexamine the proposals, as it relates to 47th Road,

         22  and included in the M1 R7-A mixed use.

         23                 In addition, the Queens West Project

         24  along East River should be the equivalent of Battery

         25  Park City with waterfront views and the area to be
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          2  developed for quality managerial residential uses,

          3  and for City life. It is one stop from where we are

          4  to Times Square by subway and Grand Central, and

          5  people who would like to live in Queens should have

          6  the opportunity through greater density and higher

          7  residential uses to be available to them.

          8                 Thank you very much.

          9                 MS. CRESPO: Thank you for the

         10  opportunity to speak today.

         11                 My name is Paula Crespo. I'm a

         12  planner at the Pratt Institute Center for Community

         13  and Environmental Development.

         14                 In 2001 we co-released a major report

         15  with the Municipal Arts Society on the City's

         16  Industrial Sector.

         17                 The report concluded that

         18  manufacturing plays a very important, albeit

         19  under-recognized role in the City's economy, and it

         20  recommended several Land Use and zoning tools for

         21  strengthening and stabilizing manufacturing.

         22                 Hunters Point and Long Island City in

         23  general have been undergoing significant changes for

         24  the last several years. Market forces combined with

         25  the 2001 rezoning will continue to transform the
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          2  character of Long Island City from its history as

          3  the best known industrial center in the City to an

          4  area that is more commercial and residential in

          5  nature.

          6                 However, despite these changes there

          7  is still a significant concentration of industrial

          8  firms that contribute to the City's economies while

          9  providing good jobs for its residents.

         10                 Metal working, printing and

         11  publishing are just some of the industry's

         12  subsectors that keep Hunters Point and New York City

         13  as a whole employed and vibrant.

         14                 Against a backdrop of broad shifts

         15  from a production-based economy to a service-based

         16  one, other cities around the US are reconsidering

         17  the changing but still vital role that industry

         18  plays in their economies.

         19                 Recognizing that even

         20  service-oriented economies still need manufacturing,

         21  several cities have implemented mechanisms for

         22  promoting a stable industrial sector.

         23                 One of these is a type of zoning that

         24  restricts commercial and residential development in

         25  order for industrial firms to be able to thrive by
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          2  reducing the direct competition for land.

          3                 In Chicago, these so-called planned

          4  manufacturing districts have been around since 1988,

          5  and with their clearly defined Land Use policies

          6  they have helped keep the City's economy diverse and

          7  stable.

          8                 In fact, while New York City lost

          9  46,000 finance, insurance and real estate jobs,

         10  between 1989 and 1999, Chicago actually gained

         11  10,000 of these types of jobs.

         12                 Therefore, these planned

         13  manufacturing districts are clearly compatible with

         14  the diverse urban economy made up of service and

         15  production-based firms.

         16                 Today there is a unique opportunity

         17  to ensure that the future of Hunters Point is a

         18  healthy balance of commerce, housing and industry.

         19                 Instead of merely rezoning Hunters

         20  Point and thereby opening the flood gates for

         21  commercial and residential development that would

         22  eventually erase its industrial past, I strongly

         23  advise the City Council to vote against the rezoning

         24  without establishing an industrial employment

         25  district directly to the north of Hunters Point.
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          2                 Such a zone would create a more

          3  predictable future for the area's rich concentration

          4  of industrial firms. It would reduce real estate

          5  market pressure that the rezoning will exacerbate,

          6  by designating a finite area as a stable home for

          7  manufacturers, while other parts of Long Island City

          8  and Hunters Point become more residential and

          9  commercial.

         10                 In closing, while it is foolish to

         11  think that Long Island City is the same industrial

         12  center it was a century ago, it would also be

         13  foolish to let go of the viable businesses that are

         14  in Hunters Point today and want to remain so long

         15  into the future.

         16                 Rezoning Hunters Point without

         17  creating an industrial employment district to its

         18  north would effectively be a letting go of such

         19  firms because without a real mechanism like this,

         20  they will not naturally survive for long.

         21                 Every area cannot be up for grabs to

         22  the highest bidder, and we cannot simply wait for

         23  the release of the City's industrial policy to start

         24  promoting viable manufacturing areas.

         25                 Therefore, I strongly urge the City
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          2  Council to seriously consider rejecting the rezoning

          3  at Hunters Point, in the absence of a truly stable,

          4  industrial zone that allows manufacturers to thrive

          5  and grow into the long-term future.

          6                 Thank you.

          7                 MR. BARWICK: Good morning. My name is

          8  Kent Barwick, and I'm testifying on behalf of the

          9  Municipal Arts Society.

         10                 Since many points have been made, I

         11  will just make a couple of points and hand in our

         12  testimony.

         13                 The Municipal Arts Society has

         14  lobbied for and gotten the City to adopt zoning

         15  about 1916, because it was obvious that without some

         16  sort of control that the varying sectors, the

         17  commercial sector, the retail, the residential and

         18  the manufacturers would cannabalize each other to

         19  the detriment of the City's economy and well being.

         20                 Nothing has changed.

         21                 We're in support. We think this is an

         22  intelligent, sensitive piece of zoning, but all by

         23  itself it doesn't address the questions that have

         24  come up, and I think we could summarize our

         25  position. Everybody has been waiting a long time for
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          2  the City to do something about this, and I think Mr.

          3  Gioia's remarks earlier were very welcome, because

          4  the mindset in the City over the last 30 years has

          5  always been seeing this as a kind of a retreating

          6  interest.

          7                 Reference was made to the '61 zoning.

          8  The '61 zoning was a trade-off and allowed many

          9  sectors, many sections of Manhattan to be rezoned

         10  for residential, and as you've heard, pushed out.

         11                 We need a Citywide zoning policy, as

         12  well as a Citywide industrial policy. It's pretty

         13  obvious that there are many, many -- why do we need

         14  it, as Adam Friedman said? There's a large portion

         15  of our population that are talented and energetic

         16  and intelligent people who are not going to be

         17  finding jobs at Morgan Stanley. And we need it

         18  because it's the underpinning. These are the silent

         19  partners of the industries that we recognize as

         20  being indispensable to our economic future, the

         21  financial services industry, the communications

         22  industry, the tourist industry, they couldn't

         23  survive very long without the jobs that need to be

         24  protected.

         25                 It's good news that there will be an
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          2  announcement shortly, apparently of policies, but

          3  it's troubling that that announcement is coming from

          4  agencies that are not the City Planning Commission.

          5                 A Land Use policy is essential here.

          6  It is the most important, and as you've heard, the

          7  most enduring statement of the City's policy. So,

          8  while it's great that there may be tax incentives,

          9  or grants or studies or anti harassment programs,

         10  all of which is desperately needed, we need to face

         11  up to the fact that we need these industrial

         12  employment zones.

         13                 And, so, we're hoping that you will

         14  take some leadership here as you have so often, and

         15  not just hold City Planning's feet to the fire, but

         16  initiate yourselves the text changes that would

         17  accomplish this.

         18                 There is a broad consensus, I don't

         19  think anybody in the City is against, not only

         20  protecting but expanding it.

         21                 I love the idea Councilman Gioia

         22  expressed of having an ambition for our City, and in

         23  addition to not just hang onto some jobs, but create

         24  them and attract them which Chicago and other places

         25  have, and we can too.
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          2                 Thank you.

          3                 MR. PAINO: My name is Tom Paino, and

          4  I'm a resident of Hunters Point, and I am here

          5  mildly in favor, also. But I think the plan goes too

          6  far.

          7                 I think it's interesting that Council

          8  Member Gioia mentioned the infrastructure problems

          9  in Woodside and Sunnyside because of overbuilding.

         10  With this current plan we may have the same problem

         11  ten years now, only it will be here for Hunters

         12  Point.

         13                 On the easel there is an illustration

         14  showing what the full build-out would be like, with

         15  this proposed zoning.

         16                 I represent 12 people who signed onto

         17  a letter to Chairperson Amanda Burden. Those 12

         18  people are property owners, business owners, and

         19  local developers, in asking that there would be a

         20  subdistrict around Andrew's Park, which is the green

         21  space on that illustration, and that that

         22  subdistrict be stepped down from the R7-A to the

         23  R6-B.

         24                 I believe that that modification is

         25  in the current amendment and is here to ensure that
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          2  that does remain an amendment.

          3                 To illustrate why we might be here

          4  very soon without getting the whole area stepped

          5  down, I've been told by City Planning that they tend

          6  to go through a higher density because it takes so

          7  much time for development to take place.

          8                 In this neighborhood, I don't believe

          9  that's going to happen. There are tremendous

         10  pressures, because of undervalued land. As an

         11  example there is a brownstone on a historic block

         12  that is on the market. That same brownstone in

         13  Manhattan just five minutes away would be 410

         14  million, in Park Slope that same brownstone is $3

         15  million, in Long Island City it's $1 million.

         16                 So, the combination of undervalued

         17  land and the pressures from developers, this

         18  neighborhood is going to go very quickly. Therefore,

         19  this zoning proposal has to be sensitive to what

         20  City Planning calls the existing fabric.

         21                 And you'll see on those photographs

         22  on this Board, some of the blocks of the existing

         23  fabric that I think should remain under this R6-B.

         24  Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Just a quick
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          2  comment, that the amendment that you're alluding to

          3  is in fact in these proposals.

          4                 MR. BARWICK: Okay, thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I'm going to call

          6  up the last panel, which is in opposition.

          7                 Before I do that, I'd like to call

          8  City Planning back. Council Member Christine Quinn,

          9  who was out of the room for a brief moment, has one

         10  additional question about this application.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Thank you very

         12  much, Mr. Chair. I really appreciate that.

         13                 And thank you, City Planning.

         14                 I know as Chairperson Katz mentioned,

         15  obviously what we're talking about today is a

         16  specific, rezoning for a specific place in the City.

         17  But as I mentioned earlier, I'm also interested in

         18  the issue, as Council Member Gioia and others have

         19  framed it, as a Citywide issue.

         20                 And I know it was mentioned by the

         21  Chair and some of the other speakers that the City

         22  is going to be coming out with a plan, or

         23  information or guidelines, or whatever the right

         24  word is, in the near future, and you're going to be

         25  meeting with elected officials and advocacy groups,
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          2  and I have a couple quick questions.

          3                 What's the time frame for that? Does

          4  it include rezoning, and who are the advocates to

          5  date that you are planning on meeting with to get

          6  input and vetting?

          7                 And I know that the Administration

          8  has certainly been very strong about the idea of

          9  financial incentives and relocation and things like

         10  that, but if the answer to the question is no, that

         11  there isn't going to be a rezoning included in it,

         12  how is it that the City will facilitate long-term

         13  stability?

         14                 Because as we saw in the, not story,

         15  the reality that Chairperson Gioia told us about,

         16  you know, when we rezoned Chelsea, $8 million is set

         17  aside to relocate printers, and that was great,

         18  except many of them were relocated to a place that

         19  they now have to leave. So, clearly the money is

         20  important and well intentioned and great, but not as

         21  we always see in the case of Chelsea, the ultimate

         22  answer.

         23                 So, those are my questions all packed

         24  in there.

         25                 MR. YOUNG: And I'll try to address
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          2  each and every one.

          3                 But I do want to say, first of all,

          4  as Council Member Katz said, that we're talking

          5  about Hunters Point, we're actually just talking

          6  about a portion of Hunters Point even, not even all

          7  of Hunters Point, and that in the area that we're

          8  proposing these zoning changes, there are Land Use

          9  trends that are already underway, Land Use trends

         10  which we think will benefit and cool down this

         11  rampant speculation that a high density development

         12  wave is going to sweep over the entire community.

         13                 This now sets clear limits. All the

         14  zones that we're proposing have real FAR caps, have

         15  height limits, and they really will prevent people

         16  from shooting the market up beyond what we're

         17  proposing now as what's reasonable and appropriate,

         18  again, based on solid planning rationales.

         19                 So that in terms of the idea of

         20  displacing activities here, we don't believe that's

         21  going to occur, that in fact this is going to cool

         22  down and allow those businesses that have interests

         23  in be in the area to retain, as well as new

         24  businesses that we hear that we really understand,

         25  want to be in the area, are restricted today from
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          2  being here.

          3                 In terms of the Citywide industrial

          4  policy, I can't speak to the outreach strategy. I

          5  believe it's going to be comprehensive to the

          6  elected officials, to the advocacy groups. I can

          7  take that message back and make sure it gets

          8  conveyed, in terms of how much it's going to -- I do

          9  believe it's going to address both policy and the

         10  notion that a clear strategy on Land Use have to be

         11  identified. I'm not sure it's going to actually

         12  specifically identify what that Land Use strategy

         13  is, but I would assume that based on my involvement

         14  when we were actually giving them names of

         15  businesses to contact in Long Island City and what

         16  we were doing at the time we were doing the study,

         17  by holding focus groups with businesses in Long

         18  Island City, as we develop the zone, we heard that

         19  there are concerns about services that need to be

         20  provided to these businesses, there are concerns

         21  about workforce, and just making sure that the

         22  workforce can get to these locations.

         23                 So, there are a whole range of issues

         24  that we do believe this policy is going to be

         25  addressed, because those were the concerns that were
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          2  raised by the businesses that were interviewed.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Has zoning been

          4  ruled out as a mechanism to deal with this?

          5                 MR. YOUNG: I can't say that zoning

          6  has been ruled out.

          7                 I can only say that in terms of what

          8  I heard in some of those discussions, Land Use and

          9  zoning wasn't at the top of their list. Taxes,

         10  certainly was at the top of their list. And I will

         11  assume, again, it will make some statement about

         12  either a clear zoning recommendation, or a

         13  recommendation that zoning and Land Use has to be

         14  coordinated with these other efforts and identifying

         15  areas, just like everyone here has said, where the

         16  vision is growth, not just based, you know, based on

         17  what the current needs are, based on what the future

         18  needs are, and based on what the stock of buildings

         19  are that are really going to be viable.

         20                 That's the other thing I want to say,

         21  this particular part of Hunters Point, the building

         22  stock here that's non-residential conducts, we're

         23  talking about small floor plates, 2,500, 5,000

         24  square feet, these are very difficult spots to have

         25  adequate loading and large scale production.
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          2                 We're really talking about areas

          3  outside of Hunters Point, where that stock of sites,

          4  where that stock of buildings are.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: I just wanted

          6  to again thank you, Mr. Chairman, for bringing them

          7  back up.

          8                 You know, I know this is about

          9  Hunters Point and part of Hunters Point in

         10  particular, but I just wanted to say, you know, I

         11  think the issue, the issues I'm raising that Eric

         12  raised and that others raised, will continue to be

         13  raised every time we rezone part or all of M zones

         14  until there is a really comprehensive Citywide plan,

         15  in my opinion, that also includes zoning-type

         16  mechanisms. Because otherwise, every time we rezone

         17  any M zone rightly or wrongly it's going to be met

         18  with a level of fear about there being a dwindling

         19  stock that's just getting, you know, coming

         20  downwards, without there being some safety net to

         21  facilitate the things starting up again in another

         22  way.

         23                 So, I don't want to take away from

         24  the needs of Hunters Point, or the issues there, but

         25  I just think until we hear from the City, and I hope
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          2  it's very much sooner rather than later, so those of

          3  us who are concerned can be at the table working off

          4  of that document to make it into more, we will hear

          5  these concerns from myself and any others any other

          6  time M zone rezonings are coming before us.

          7                 MR. YOUNG: I'll take that back to the

          8  Chair.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you, John.

         11                 Next panel is James Cortazar; John

         12  Malloy; Ernie Smith and Gennaro D Massaro.

         13                 MR. CORTAZAR: Hello. My name is James

         14  Cortazar. I'm a property owner on 47th Road in Long

         15  Island City.

         16                 I do not approve of the present

         17  zoning plan based on a few reasons that exclude me

         18  as a beneficiary and include me as a person highly

         19  inconvenienced and overwhelmed with burdens

         20  regarding construction, taxes, parking and a list of

         21  other things that we can go into in depth.

         22                 As both a real estate and

         23  construction professional, I can clearly see that

         24  this proposed rezoning plan is very significant in

         25  respect to the socioeconomic changes it will impose
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          2  on Hunters Point.

          3                 It's not a minor change by any means.

          4  The City Planning considers it a minor change, but

          5  it definitely is not a minor change, and it is

          6  definitely not a plan that should have went on

          7  without an in-depth impact statement normally

          8  required by such a change.

          9                 This plan will have a severe impact

         10  on us because our area has no provision for public

         11  facilities such as parking, air quality, market

         12  stability, prevention of business displacement, as

         13  required.

         14                 The environmental assessment study

         15  performed for this proposal says that it is a minor

         16  change with minimal effect and concluded that there

         17  is no need for in-depth formal analysis of the

         18  socioeconomic and environmental impact because there

         19  will be none.

         20                 Obviously, this is not true.

         21                 However, this environmental

         22  assessment study is grossly inadequate.

         23                 We have been promised a restudy of

         24  the area. The purpose of this restudy is to correct

         25  a negative impact that this proposal has on the
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          2  mid-blocks by way of increasing the FAR to something

          3  which will offset the inequities and negative impact

          4  that will likely result through the implementation

          5  of this plan.

          6                 However, restudy of our area in the

          7  proposed purpose of remedying this great and

          8  crippling socioeconomic impact that this proposal

          9  will have on us will likely conclude the original

         10  environmental assessment was inadequate, as it is --

         11  and that this area is being changed too greatly.

         12  Therefore new increased development rights cannot be

         13  granted to mid-blocks, even with the intention of

         14  using it to save us from negative affects of

         15  surrounding development.

         16                 So it seems an attempt to stop the

         17  socioeconomic negative impact that this proposal

         18  will have on us, we have sealed our own fate.

         19                 In this proposal, if this proposal

         20  passes, which we hope it does not, we will be

         21  systematically eliminated from the future of Hunters

         22  Point by not being an economically feasible place

         23  for us to live, to manage or to grow as an economic

         24  force.

         25                 We cannot financially afford to
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          2  offset the impacts that this change in market

          3  conditions will impose.

          4                 Please take into consideration that I

          5  have been there for many years already waiting for

          6  these changes to take place, waiting for the new

          7  development of this area, and I don't want to be

          8  left out. After suffering through all the negative

          9  impacts of the Queens West Project we already did

         10  suffer, through the traffic, through the no parking,

         11  through all the noise of the trucks just coming back

         12  and forth for the last years, and it's going to

         13  continue, and not to be able to take part in the

         14  benefits of all of that inconvenience is kind of

         15  upsetting to me, who has been there for awhile, and

         16  hope to continue to stay there with my family and

         17  grow the business and as a resident of the

         18  neighborhood.

         19                 So, please vote this down, and I hope

         20  -- I know that this represents that not everyone

         21  here is the only people being negatively impacted.

         22  Many people who were not aware of this proceeding or

         23  were not reached to be part of this process. So, it

         24  would be nice if this does get turned down and that

         25  you do reach out to more residents and smaller
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          2  property owners of this community so that we have a

          3  fair evaluation of what the impact might and how

          4  other people might feel. Because many people from

          5  the community are not even aware of this. Thank you

          6  for your time.

          7                 MR. MALLOY: My name is John Malloy,

          8  and I'm here to testify today in opposition to this

          9  proposal of rezoning and ask that the City Council

         10  vote it down.

         11                 I am appreciative of the Councilman's

         12  office's efforts to try and help us effect a means

         13  to offset the negative impact that we're afraid this

         14  proposed rezoning is going to have on us, and we're

         15  grateful for those efforts, but we have to be, we

         16  have to oppose the plan as it is now. If something

         17  comes into effect in the future, that's fine. But

         18  this plan, as it stands now is incomplete. There is

         19  no environmental impact statement prepared in

         20  relation to this proposal. It covers a 43-block area

         21  within the Hunters Point subdistrict and is well

         22  within what I understand to be the trigger which

         23  calls for such a study to be done.

         24                 The study hasn't been done, and this

         25  proposal may not have been passed if it was done.
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          2                 The socioeconomic effects of this

          3  plan will have on the real estate market and the

          4  long-term residents and homeowners in this community

          5  is overwhelming.

          6                 It's not the minimal effects that

          7  this plan is being presented as having.

          8                 When the surrounding developments

          9  make progress, the surrounding developments

         10  surrounding the mid-blocks in relation to Hunters

         11  Point I'm referring to, when the surrounding

         12  developments make progress, in theory it will raise

         13  the value of the property within the mid-blocks,

         14  even if the mid-blocks are not allowed to develop

         15  themselves. That's the theory being practiced on the

         16  mid-blocks through this proposed plan.

         17                 However, also in theory and in

         18  reality, there is a point where expenses on your

         19  properties due to surrounding development and the

         20  increase in the real estate market, can be so great

         21  that they do not offset any increased value of your

         22  property -- excuse me -- that they offset any

         23  increased value in your property. In essence, your

         24  expenses are going to quadruple, your value of your

         25  property goes up very little or possibly even goes
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          2  down due to a flood in a surrounding real estate

          3  market.

          4                 The average property in the

          5  mid-blocks is rent stabilized, meaning that after

          6  renovation or redevelopment, property owners would

          7  be legally required to put back the same six tenants

          8  in their brand new building at the same below market

          9  rental rate that they're paying now.

         10                 A property owner typically gets just

         11  one additional apartment unit that they can rent the

         12  market value through this proposed rezoning.

         13                 From my experience in both the real

         14  estate and construction industries, I can tell you

         15  that one additional unit cannot pay these expenses

         16  or even close to it, even if there is no existing

         17  mortgage on the property.

         18                 The result of this plan is going to

         19  be that these people's taxes in the mid-blocks

         20  double. The insurance companies continue to charge

         21  them the outrageous rates for having the attached

         22  decrepid wood frame houses that can't be brought up

         23  to par and now we're going to be abutting

         24  multi-million dollar properties and possibly

         25  inflaming them if they go up in flames also.
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          2                 We're going to see increases in

          3  taxes, increases in insurance rates, increases in

          4  everything, and the surge in increased residential

          5  housing that is going to be implemented be this plan

          6  is going to be astronomical. We're going to see --

          7  we already see four and five-story buildings going

          8  up, you know, before this plan is going to be

          9  implemented. We're just not going to be able to

         10  compete financially in what this market is being

         11  changed into.

         12                 By 2013, which seems to be the

         13  benchmark which City Planning is gearing and

         14  weighing this whole issue against, by 2013 we're

         15  going to be completely forced out of the market

         16  simply because we don't have the ability to develop

         17  our properties enough to bring them up to par with

         18  the surrounding communities.

         19                 There have been no studies in

         20  relation to this, in regards to the plan. We feel

         21  that the environmental impact statement being waived

         22  was possibly an act of negligence. We feel that this

         23  plan is really just incomplete and has failed to

         24  take into consideration a lot of aspects of the

         25  community.
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          2                 Despite City Planning's claims, they

          3  did not outreach toward the mid-blocks and the

          4  general residents and homeowners of the community.

          5                 The documentation supports that the

          6  only people that were outreached to were the owners

          7  of the industrial properties, who are now receiving

          8  broad residential development rights on their

          9  properties, in the name of protecting manufacturing,

         10  which is another thing I don't understand.

         11                 Thank you for your time. Again, I ask

         12  that as this plan stands it be voted down.

         13                 Thank you.

         14                 MR. SMITH: Hello. My name is Ernie

         15  Smith, and I'm the President of Penn & Fletcher. We

         16  are a small manufacturer of embroidery located in

         17  Long Island City.

         18                 While Penn & Fletcher is not located

         19  in the Hunters Point area which is being considered

         20  for rezoning, we are the immediate and anxious

         21  neighbors to the north.

         22                 I'm here to urge you to reject the

         23  Department of City Planning's proposal to rezone

         24  Hunters Point. It will have a dramatic ripple effect

         25  on the heavily concentrated area of industrial jobs
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          2  to the north, where we are located.

          3                 We literally look across the street

          4  at the area being rezoned and envision how the

          5  potential changes are going to upset and impact us.

          6                 I have my written testimony here to

          7  distribute to you, and it tells the story of us

          8  leaving Manhattan, and the difficulties we had faced

          9  in leaving Manhattan, coming to Long Island City,

         10  and how upsetting it is to see things change there

         11  once we were lured into Long Island City. And also

         12  our support for the plan manufacturing areas.

         13                 But I'm going to speak off the cuff

         14  for a minute about what I believe to be a kind of

         15  self-fulfilling prophecy that the City has regarding

         16  manufacturing.

         17                 For years gross manufacturing faced

         18  the competition of the outside world, and over time

         19  it left the City, and the City said, gee,

         20  manufacturing is leaving, we will rezone, putting

         21  more pressure on the manufacturers who continue to

         22  stay in the City.

         23                 The outside forces continued, we had

         24  NAFTA, we had whatever, we have Seventh Avenue

         25  almost completely leaving the City and the City is
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          2  saying, see, manufacturing is leaving, we need to

          3  rezone.

          4                 Those of us who are left are not in

          5  competition with these outside forces. Today the

          6  City is our enemy in its process of rezoning and

          7  eliminating manufacturing spaces.

          8                 It is difficult for us to continue to

          9  stay when you try to put us in places that are

         10  unacceptable for us.

         11                 I recently took a trip to the

         12  Brooklyn Navy Yard as a possible place to look to

         13  the future, and realized it may be right for some

         14  people, but for people in my industry it was a hell

         15  hole, a white elephant, unacceptable as a place to

         16  move to.

         17                 So, the whole process of rezoning I

         18  say has a self-fulfilling prophecy, and that is the

         19  City is chasing manufacturers away.

         20                 Thank you.

         21                 MR. MASSARO: Good morning. My name is

         22  Gennaro Massaro, and I am here representing the 47th

         23  Road/Avenue Block Association.

         24                 We ask that the proposed zoning plan

         25  in its current state for Hunters Point be voted
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          2  down.

          3                 This plan is discriminatory

          4  economically. It does not grant equal development

          5  rights to all land owners within the proposed area.

          6                 It creates a two-tier system of land

          7  ownership. Why should the land behind us be worth

          8  twice as much as ours? Why should the land on either

          9  side be worth one and a half times as much.

         10                 Neil Galiardi and John Young of City

         11  Planning never consulted with local community as to

         12  what they would like to see happen in the form of

         13  new development, until after they had determined

         14  what type of zoning should be in place within the

         15  subdistrict.

         16                 We have been working with the Office

         17  of City Councilman Eric Gioia, and we appreciate

         18  your help, since April, to try and make this plan

         19  fair to all owners of Hunters Point, who were told

         20  by City Planning it was too late to make any changes

         21  to the plan as it currently existed.

         22                 We were promised a further Land Use

         23  study which would include our properties, and would

         24  be conducted in the near future, but we see this as

         25  fruitless since the proposed plan will bring about
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          2  major development to this area, thus making it

          3  unable to support further development.

          4                 So, I am here today to ask the plan

          5  be voted down in its current state.

          6                 The Hunters Point community will be

          7  far better off if left to develop as currently

          8  zoned. It will be up to the land owners to do what

          9  they see fit within the guidelines presently in

         10  place.

         11                 The current owners of the people

         12  provide affordable housing in the community. The new

         13  developers and speculators are here only to make

         14  money and will not provide this type of housing.

         15                 They will also not strengthen the tax

         16  base, since they will get, be granted abatements and

         17  incentives to come here to build.

         18                 The current owners will not be able

         19  to compete, since they will not have been given the

         20  opportunity to take advantage of the increased

         21  zoning or other incentives. Our costs will

         22  skyrocket, and they will be able to afford the --

         23  they will not be able to afford the properties they

         24  currently own. We will have no alternative but to

         25  sell and leave an area that we have lived in for
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          2  generations.

          3                 My family has lived in my house

          4  almost 100 years. I just want that on the record.

          5  And also the fact of some of the statements made by

          6  Mr. Gagliardi and Mr. Young, as far as block size

          7  and zoning rights. Fiftieth Avenue and 11th Street

          8  are streets that are smaller than 47th Road, yet

          9  there is room for ten-story buildings.

         10                 Fifth Street, between 51st Avenue and

         11  50th Avenue, zoned for eight-story buildings and

         12  12-story buildings on Second Street in the same

         13  area. These streets are the same size as 47th Road.

         14  I own one of the 16 properties that is now in a hold

         15  because of this zoning plan.

         16                 There are eight-story buildings

         17  behind us and six-story buildings on either side of

         18  us.

         19                 Our light and air will be completely

         20  compromised by this zoning plan.

         21                 Secondly, there are no provisions for

         22  public facilities within the new zoning district.

         23  The new community will need a high school, medical

         24  facility, senior housing, and other amenities, and

         25  the land most suited to support these facilities is,
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          2  of course, the properties that be least costly to

          3  the City of New York and these properties are in the

          4  mid-blocks which are gaining absolutely nothing from

          5  this plan.

          6                 They have been left as cheap

          7  properties right for eminent domain if the City

          8  still decides.

          9                 We can see these blocks, since they

         10  are in the center of both plans being used for such

         11  a purpose. A co-worker who has a master's degree

         12  from Harvard in Urban Planning and seen the plan

         13  stated to me that either they want to preserve these

         14  lots or use them for other purposes. This is the

         15  only reason they are left with no development rights

         16  other than those they already have.

         17                 I took him on a walking tour of the

         18  community and his statement to me was that the

         19  houses that are presently there, the structures that

         20  are presently there have very little architectural

         21  significance, and unlikely that they are looking to

         22  preserve them.

         23                 In closing, I again ask you be fair

         24  to your constituents, to the constituents you

         25  represent by voting the plan down, and not looking
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          2  to help the developers and other people just looking

          3  to make money off the backs of the people who have

          4  been here for many generations.

          5                 Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Council Member

          7  Gioia.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: Thank you.

          9                 I need to be very brief. Thank you

         10  for coming down here.

         11                 First, just very quickly, Mr. Smith,

         12  thank you for your testimony. When I speak about

         13  manufacturers being placed from place to place to

         14  place, it's often your example that I think about,

         15  and when I discuss my view of what needs to happen,

         16  in terms of where the City wants to be and managing

         17  towards that goal, it's you that I'm thinking of.

         18                 For Long Island City homeowners, just

         19  a very brief question. First let me say, I mean I

         20  hear you, obviously I hear you, and I was

         21  disappointed as well as you are, maybe not as much

         22  as you are, but as well as you are, that this is

         23  said to be beyond the scope, to look at your block,

         24  47th Road, and upzone it.

         25                 But it's not a question of, you're
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          2  not opposed to development, you're opposed to the

          3  fact that your block is not included in this further

          4  study. If it were included, you'd be in favor of

          5  upzoning your block, right?

          6                 MR. SMITH: We feel that the proposed

          7  rezoning, as it stands, is going to have great

          8  negative impacts on us socioeconomically and

          9  environmentally.

         10                 We feel that if the zoning was

         11  increased within the midblocks, and those properties

         12  had the socioeconomic ability to bring themselves up

         13  to par with the surrounding community, that the

         14  effect of that would be as to offset the negative

         15  impact being imposed on us through the current

         16  rezoning.

         17                 MR. MASSARO: Can I make a statement

         18  on it?

         19                 I'm one of those homeowners who

         20  actually wants to knock my house down, rebuild it,

         21  relocate my tenants at my expense and bring them

         22  back. But with what I'm allowed to build it's

         23  impossible.

         24                 I would love to have a nice home to

         25  live in. Something like you live in in Bayside, in
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          2  Woodside, I live in a railroad tenement, a railroad

          3  house which I can do very little with. I personally

          4  occupied three of my apartments. It's impossible to

          5  do much with it. Yet, I'd be more than willing to do

          6  a total reconstruction if I were granted the right

          7  to build enough apartments where it makes it

          8  financially viable.

          9                 Right now it doesn't. No one ever

         10  came to us, never. Ever came to my block. I don't

         11  care what Mr. Young, Mr. Galiardi, Ms. Amanda Burden

         12  said, no one ever came to my community where we

         13  live, we live for generations, and asked us what we

         14  would like to have. Never. And if they tell you that

         15  they did, they're not being truthful. That's all I

         16  have to say on that subject.

         17                 But we would definitely like to be

         18  able to develop our properties, make them

         19  economically viable and provide for, you know,

         20  provide for cost-efficient housing -- I can't think

         21  of the word right now, I'm just aggravated.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.

         23                 MR. MASSARO: Affordable housing.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: The last speaker

         25  on this item is Michael Slattery.
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          2                 MR. SLATTERY: Thank you. I guess I'm

          3  on the panel that strongly supports the proposal. I

          4  see I'm alone.

          5                 We support it in part because it does

          6  link the waterfront with the commercial and office

          7  core that's been rezoned earlier. We also support it

          8  because of the potential to convert and create 300

          9  additional units of housing.

         10                 However, in the document for the

         11  planning study for this report, it was something I

         12  though that was very telling there, that illuminates

         13  the number of issues that were raised today.

         14                 The report states in 1961, despite

         15  prevalent concentrations of residents in the

         16  neighborhood, manufacturing zoning districts were

         17  established throughout Hunters Point to foster the

         18  expansion of industrial uses.

         19                 It's difficult to imagine today a

         20  time in our City's not too distant past when we

         21  prohibited residential uses to promote the growth of

         22  industrial use.

         23                 It's also difficult to imagine a time

         24  when housing was plentiful, relatively inexpensive,

         25  and we were building on average 32,000 units a year.
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          2                 At that time our economy had almost a

          3  million manufacturing jobs and planners in 1961

          4  sought in part to protect these jobs and promote

          5  their growth by prohibiting residential uses from

          6  these newly designated manufacturing zones.

          7                 However, planning and zoning can

          8  either create jobs, nor insulate these jobs from the

          9  larger, more powerful economic forces, globally and

         10  nationally, that affect our local economy.

         11                 Zoning can constrain and has

         12  constrained new housing production.

         13                 We know too well what happened to

         14  manufacturing job growth and new housing production

         15  following the 1961 zoning. With the new, more

         16  restrictive zoning designation in place, those which

         17  prohibited residential incursions, the City lost

         18  nearly 500,000 jobs by 1975.

         19                 By the 1980s housing sites were

         20  scarce and expensive.

         21                 We were now building slightly more

         22  than 10,000 housing units a year, a significant and

         23  steady decline from earlier decades when Land Use

         24  controls were more flexible.

         25                 As a result, housing development
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          2  costs have risen and continued to rise.

          3                 In contrast, manufacturing rents are

          4  too low just to justify the creation of new space,

          5  even on the least expensive land.

          6                 This proposal recognizes that the

          7  City's needs have changed. Despite the encouraging

          8  number of new housing permits in the last three

          9  years, approximately 20,000, we still suffer from a

         10  housing shortage.

         11                 In the rezonings adopted since 1961

         12  for Hunters Point, there has been a recognition of

         13  this neighborhood's fixed use character, and how

         14  these changing characters reflect the City's needs.

         15  I think this proposal advances it.

         16                 And just a couple of comments based

         17  upon some of the questions here.

         18                 It's important to note how the

         19  rezoning has gotten more restrictive from 61 from

         20  earlier times, and how that did not protect jobs.

         21                 We tried to do that again in '87 with

         22  the garment center, and, again, we didn't create

         23  jobs.

         24                 We do have, you know, current

         25  locations where manufacturing is not threatened at
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          2  all, the Brooklyn Army Terminal and Bush Terminal,

          3  two locations in Brooklyn.

          4                 Also, in a study that we had done, we

          5  had spoken to two manufacturers in Long Island City,

          6  both owned their own properties so had no real

          7  estate pressures. Both left New York because of

          8  cost.

          9                 We keep talking about restrictive

         10  zoning and try to reduce real estate pressures, but

         11  we do nothing about the pressures from competition

         12  from abroad, pressure of rising taxes, pressures

         13  from labor cost, Medicare costs, medical costs for

         14  workers, costs for energy and other costs, pension

         15  costs, things that affect these businesses, to focus

         16  only on real estate and to ignore these other costs,

         17  and what we'll see what will happen as you restrict

         18  areas, these businesses that you're trying to

         19  protect today, leave tomorrow, it's very hard to

         20  fill those places up and you have underutilization

         21  like you have many parts of the City that are

         22  currently zoned manufacturing.

         23                 Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.

         25                 If there's nobody else signed up to
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          2  speak on this item, I will close the public hearing

          3  on that item.

          4                 We will now move to Land Use Number

          5  182, C030449 ZMR; and Land Use Number 228 C030450

          6  ZSR, and Preconsidered N030453 ZAR, commonly

          7  referred to as the Tides of Charleston. Application

          8  by PC Group, LLC, for amendment of the zoning map

          9  for changing from an M3 M1 district to an R3

         10  district -- 2 district, property bounded by Arthur

         11  Kill Road and other streets.

         12                 MR. RAMPULLA: Good afternoon. My name

         13  is Philip Rampulla, representing PC Group from the

         14  firm of Rampulla Associates Architects.

         15                 A quick overview. The subject

         16  property is a 58-acre site that's located on the

         17  West Shore of Staten Island, just north of the outer

         18  bridge crossing. It is in a manufacturing district,

         19  which is the area right here. More than half the

         20  site is located under the water, with tidal wetlands

         21  and fresh water wetlands, which leaves us a

         22  developable area of about 24 and a half acres.

         23                 Within the immediate vicinity is the

         24  Bricktown Shopping Center, which was recently

         25  approved by the City Council. A set-aside for the
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          2  Board of Education for a future school site, another

          3  ten acres for senior housing, a garden center with

          4  future MTA bus garage and another senior housing

          5  project, which is located across the street from us.

          6                 What we're attempting to do is

          7  introduce a housing type that has never been done in

          8  the City of New York before, an active adult

          9  community for people of 55 years of age and older.

         10                 The site itself is a waterfront site,

         11  and we are required to have four new corridors. We

         12  have one additional view corridor, more than

         13  required by City Planning. A portion of the site is

         14  to remain zoned manufacturing, where we're proposing

         15  a 3,900 square foot restaurant.

         16                 The townhouse along the water's edge,

         17  we are proposing a waterfront walkway with benches

         18  and parks areas, and that is accessed down this

         19  street and all along the waterfront.

         20                 There are pedestrian links throughout

         21  the development that remain open 24 hours a day, and

         22  the housing type itself, we have paid homage to the

         23  automobile and transportation problems that are

         24  encountered on Staten Island, and we've come up with

         25  a unique courtyard concept, where we have one, two,
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          2  three, four units costed around the courtyard and

          3  each one of these dwelling units has a two-car

          4  garage, a one-car garage, a one-car garage and a

          5  two-car garage. The streets are 34 feet in width,

          6  which leaves more than ample, enough parking on the

          7  streets themselves because we have the automobile

          8  courtyard. And in addition to that, we are proposing

          9  a community center with a pool for the residents of

         10  the development. The developer has already done a

         11  market study to determine what type of services

         12  would be required by the people who live in a senior

         13  center, we'll have a nurse who comes once a month.

         14  There will be a media room, a library, and a place

         15  for people to come and meet.

         16                 One of the important things that I

         17  like to reiterate, there is absolutely no public

         18  access on the West Shore of Staten Island from the

         19  gulf of the bridge to the outer bridge crossing.

         20                 This represents the first time that

         21  we'll be opening up the waterfront to the public.

         22                 This is just a view from the

         23  restaurant area looking back to the waterfront

         24  esplanade and the outerbridge crossing in the

         25  background, and this would be the development
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          2  itself.

          3                 This is a view of one of the view

          4  corridors that has the public pedestrian walkway

          5  that's open 24 hours. The site sloped 60 feet, the

          6  water being at zero and the highest point at 60

          7  feet. So, we stepped the development down the side

          8  of the hills, let everyone get views, so when you're

          9  going along Arthur Kill Road, you will see this

         10  view.

         11                 That's pretty much it. I know it's

         12  been a long morning.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Into the

         14  afternoon.

         15                 This project lies within Council

         16  Member Lanza's district.

         17                 Council Member Lanza.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER LANZA: Thank you,

         19  Chairman Avella, for the opportunity to speak.

         20                 It's not often that you hear a member

         21  from the Staten Island Delegation speaking in favor

         22  of a residential development project, but this is a

         23  horse of a different color in that it is senior

         24  housing and there is tremendous need on Staten

         25  Island for this sort of housing to serve our aging
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          2  population, and we've witnessed over the last decade

          3  seniors on Staten Island being forced to move out of

          4  state and here we have an opportunity to allow them

          5  to stay close to their families, their neighbors,

          6  their doctors, which is something I think we have an

          7  obligation and a responsibility to do. I think this

          8  does that sensibly.

          9                 I've worked for a long time now with

         10  the developer on this project, Mr. Rampulla. I want

         11  to thank them for meeting many of the suggestions

         12  and demands that we've made on behalf of the

         13  community with respect to modifications included in

         14  this project, amenities, improvements, for instance,

         15  the esplanade and these view corridors, and you

         16  know, we're forging into new ground here on Staten

         17  Island with respect to these type of communities,

         18  but I think we need to see where we go with them,

         19  because as I said, there is a tremendous need for

         20  our aging population on Staten Island, and I think

         21  we need to do all we can to make sure that people

         22  are not forced to leave Staten Island, leave the

         23  state, to accommodate their lifestyles as they enjoy

         24  their golden years.

         25                 So, I want to thank you for the many
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          2  concessions that you've made and improvements to

          3  this project to meet the needs of the community. And

          4  again, Councilman Avella, I want to thank you for

          5  your patience, as well, the staff of the Land Use

          6  for all the work, and I want to thank my colleagues

          7  from Staten Island, Councilmen McMahon and Oddo for

          8  the leadership that they've demonstrated with

          9  respect to try to meet the need for senior housing

         10  all across the Borough of Staten Island.

         11                 Thank you. And I urge you to vote in

         12  favor of this application.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Council Member

         14  Oddo.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Thank you.

         16                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Councilman

         17  Lanza said it very succinctly and very accurately

         18  that we wouldn't be entertaining this project but

         19  for the fact that it is senior housing. And, you

         20  know, just to tie this issue back to one of the

         21  earlier items about the Growth Management Task

         22  Force, one of the items still on the agenda for that

         23  task force, because it's an ongoing task force, is

         24  to study the manufacturing zones on Staten Island

         25  that sweep across from Mike McMahon's district and
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          2  my district to Councilman Lanza's district. And I

          3  have to say, I think I'll speak for myself and my

          4  two colleagues from Staten Island could agree or

          5  disagree, I think they agree, that this is probably

          6  the last time I'm going to entertain a zoning change

          7  from manufacturing to residential, until we have

          8  that study complete. Because I don't want sort of an

          9  ad hoc approach before the study even gets

         10  completed.

         11                 But Councilman Lanza emphasized the

         12  fact that this is senior housing. Mr. Rampulla, I

         13  asked you earlier, and I want to get it on the

         14  record, how do we ensure that this in fact is senior

         15  housing? How do we ensure that the first buyer is 55

         16  years old but he or she doesn't subsequently sell it

         17  to someone who is younger than that, or subsequently

         18  gives it to a family member who then moves in, you

         19  know, a young family? How do we ensure senior

         20  housing?

         21                 MR. RAMPULLA: There are two avenues:

         22  One, in accordance with the federal housing law, 80

         23  percent of the units have to go to persons that are

         24  55 years or older. The marketing of the project,

         25  however, we don't anticipate that anyone under 55 of
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          2  the 20 percent that can buy, would want to live in

          3  this neighborhood, because it's not necessarily

          4  children-friendly.

          5                 The second failsafe that we have is

          6  the restrictive declaration is already on file with

          7  the City Planning Commission for over 55, and that

          8  is being folded into home owners association that

          9  will be under the auspices of the New York State

         10  Attorney Generals Office.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: So, if I'm a

         12  resident within the development, or let's say I'm a

         13  civic leader outside of the development and I find

         14  out, or the rumor is that there are lots of folks

         15  living in the community who are under the age of 55,

         16  what do I do, appeal to the Attorney General?

         17                 MR. RAMPULLA: You can appeal to the

         18  City Planning Commission, and you can appeal to the

         19  Attorney General, yes.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: And they have

         21  the ability to --

         22                 MR. RAMPULLA: Enforce.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: To actually make

         24  that individual who acquired the property --

         25                 MR. RAMPULLA: I'm not that familiar
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          2  with case law and what the implications would be.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Okay. All right,

          4  thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I'm just informed

          6  by Counsel that with restrictive declarations, City

          7  Council could get involved if there's a violation.

          8  That's good to know.

          9                 Any other questions?

         10                 MR. RAMPULLA: I would just like to

         11  add, if I may, that I hope this raises the bar of

         12  what a good development should be like, not only for

         13  manufacturing properties that go residential, but

         14  also for residential projects that are out there

         15  now.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.

         17                 We have a number of people signed up

         18  to speak. I'm going to take a little liberty here.

         19  As far as I can see, the four people who have signed

         20  up to speak are all in favor of the project. Charles

         21  Halle, Marianne DiStefano, Carmella Anzalone, and

         22  Frank Luzi; is that correct?

         23                 Would you be so kind to waive your

         24  time to speak and just indicate for the record that

         25  you're in favor of the project?
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          2                 MR. LUZI: I would like to, being a

          3  senior citizen --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Then you're going

          5  to have to speak into the record.

          6                 MR. LUZI: My name is Frank Luzi, and

          7  I'm a resident of Staten Island from some 40 odd

          8  years, and Councilman Lanza took my whole speech

          9  away.

         10                 I'm 68 years old. I brought up two

         11  children on Staten Island and am blessed with seven

         12  grandchildren.

         13                 Through the 40 years leading very

         14  active lives, we have met many people and have

         15  formed many long, lifelong friendships on Staten

         16  Island.

         17                 I'm planning to retire in a couple of

         18  years, and why would I want to go to Pennsylvania or

         19  New Jersey to find the type of home or houses that

         20  the Tides of Charleston will be providing us?

         21                 We're planning to scale down our

         22  houses, live with adult people in an active, active

         23  -- I still play golf, I still ride bicycles, et

         24  cetera, et cetera, in the community and who also

         25  enjoy those pleasures.
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          2                 We have proposed the Tides of

          3  Charleston, it would keep senior citizens on Staten

          4  Island, near the family and friends, enjoying our

          5  twilight years together.

          6                 We seniors have paid our dues, and

          7  there are many of us out there, as Councilman Lanza

          8  pointed out, and the number are increasing, and I

          9  believe this call should be considered and approved.

         10                 On behalf of the many seniors who

         11  attended the Community Board 3, I think it was April

         12  '04, I respectfully request City Council's approval

         13  of the Tides of Charleston.

         14                 We thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.

         16                 If there is nobody else signed up to

         17  speak, we will close the public hearing and move on

         18  to the final item, and I appreciate the cooperation

         19  of Goldman and Sachs for sitting through three hours

         20  of testimony.

         21                 Land Use Number 227, N040396 ZRM, an

         22  application submitted by Battery Park City Authority

         23  for an amendment of the zoning resolution of the

         24  City of New York, concerning Article 8, Chapter 4,

         25  Special Battery Park District, regarding commercial
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          2  development.

          3                 MR. KETRING: Good morning. My name is

          4  Michael Ketring. My name is Michael Ketring. I'm

          5  Senior Development Counsel for the Battery Park City

          6  Authority.

          7                 I'd to give testimony on behalf of

          8  Timothy S. Carey, President and Chief Executive

          9  Officer of Battery Park City Authority.

         10                 Chairman Avella, and members of the

         11  Zoning and Franchises Subcommittee, thank you for

         12  the opportunity to speak today in support of our

         13  proposed amendment to the Special Battery Park City

         14  District Text of the New York City zoning

         15  resolution.

         16                 My name is Timothy S. Carey, I am

         17  President and Chief Executive Officer of the

         18  applicant, the Battery Park City Authority.

         19                 The large block in Battery Park City

         20  to the north of the World Financial Center along

         21  West Street contains what the Authority calls "sites

         22  25" and "26."

         23                 The Authority's plan for sites 25 and

         24  26 since the 1980s has been to develop those sites

         25  with commercial uses.
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          2                 In 1997, site 25 was zoned, and in

          3  mid-2000, development of the site as the home of the

          4  Embassy Suites Hotel and United Artist Cinemas was

          5  completed.

          6                 The amendment before you today will

          7  enable a development of site 26. Site 26 is one of

          8  the best development parcels remaining in Manhattan

          9  suitable for commercial use.

         10                 The development of this site for

         11  commercial use will provide significant economic

         12  benefits to the State and City and substantially

         13  assist the public sector in its efforts to retain

         14  jobs in Lower Manhattan.

         15                 As with all development projects in

         16  Battery Park City the Authority issues detailed

         17  design guidelines that require quality materials,

         18  establish a percentage of glass and masonry and

         19  provide other design controls.

         20                 The Authority also requires the use

         21  of architects well regarded in their profession for

         22  excellence of design, to ensure that the high

         23  standards established by the Authority are

         24  maintained.

         25                 In addition, since 2000, the
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          2  Authority had required the development in Battery

          3  Park City comply with Authority Green Guidelines

          4  that mandate the development of environmentally

          5  responsible buildings.

          6                 The Authority's Green Guidelines

          7  require building designs that provide for improved

          8  energy and water conservation, renewable energy,

          9  enhanced indoor air quality, the increased use of

         10  recycled and local or regionally-produced materials

         11  and other green measures.

         12                 Although our intention to zone Site

         13  26 is independent of any particular developer, we

         14  are delighted that not long ago Goldman Sachs

         15  approached the State, the City and the Authority

         16  with a request to locate its new headquarters on

         17  Site 26.

         18                 This transaction is of great

         19  importance to the City and the State and will retain

         20  many jobs that might otherwise be located to New

         21  Jersey.

         22                 The Authority enthusiastically

         23  supports Goldman Sachs' selection of a world renown

         24  architect, Henry Cobb of Pei, Cobb, Freed and

         25  Partners, to design its new world headquarters.
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          2                 Also, Goldman Sachs has embraced the

          3  Authority's Green Guidelines and is working closely

          4  with the Authority to develop one of the City's most

          5  advanced green commercial office buildings, one that

          6  will achieve a rating of lead gold.

          7                 I am requesting your approval of the

          8  proposed zoning for site 26 before you today.

          9                 Your approval will permit the

         10  development of this important site.

         11                 Thank you for your consideration of

         12  this amendment.

         13                 MR. GALEN: Mr. Chairman and assembled

         14  Council members, my name is Timur Galen. I'm a

         15  Managing Director for Goldman Sachs and Company, and

         16  I have responsibility for the company's firm, the

         17  company's worldwide real estate holding.

         18                 Goldman Sachs is a leading global

         19  investment banking securities and investment

         20  managing firm whose headquarters has been in Lower

         21  Manhattan since 1869.

         22                 For the past 135 years, through bull

         23  markets and bear markets, as our business has grown

         24  and changed, so have our real estate needs.

         25                 Today the physical and technological
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          2  constraints of our downtown campus are a significant

          3  impediment to the future growth of our business.

          4                 Moreover, by the end of the decade,

          5  significant leases will expire on a majority of our

          6  downtown properties, including our headquarters

          7  building.

          8                 As a consequence, about 18 months

          9  ago, we began to study in earnest how best to

         10  replace those expiring leases, and how best to plan

         11  for the future needs of our business.

         12                 We carefully considered investing in

         13  existing buildings, as well as in the development of

         14  a variety of potential sites.

         15                 Late last year we concluded that Site

         16  26 would be the ideal place to relocate our

         17  headquarters building and to plan for our future

         18  needs.

         19                 Since the beginning of the year, a

         20  team of highly qualified architects, engineers, and

         21  highrise building construction experts have been

         22  planning for the development of this project.

         23                 The building's design is something of

         24  a New York story. It's being led by Mr. Henry Cobb,

         25  one of the founding partners of Pei, Cobb, Freed and
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          2  Partners.

          3                 Harry, one of the deans of his

          4  profession, has been practicing architecture in New

          5  York for over 50 years. This will be the first

          6  significant building he will have designed for

          7  construction in New York City.

          8                 He has important buildings in

          9  virtually every business center around the world,

         10  but this will be his first in New York.

         11                 As you can imagine, the team, the

         12  architects, the engineers, we at Goldman Sachs, are

         13  all enormously proud to be part of this undertaking.

         14                 From the outset, Harry's had two

         15  principle goals: The first, to design a building

         16  that very effectively meets the needs of Goldman

         17  Sachs, a great building to work in.

         18                 The second has been to design a

         19  building that has been a good neighbor and a great

         20  civic building.

         21                 With your support, we plan to

         22  commence construction of this project by late this

         23  year or early next and to complete and begin

         24  occupancy by 2008.

         25                 In the spirit of being a good
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          2  neighbor, Goldman Sachs has also committed

          3  substantial funds to fund the design and

          4  construction of a new New York Public Library branch

          5  in Battery Park City.

          6                 And in addition, to fund the

          7  construction of a recreational youth center in our

          8  neighborhood in Lower Manhattan.

          9                 Finally, our plan to build one of the

         10  most innovative and environmentally responsive

         11  high-rise office buildings ever conceived,

         12  specifically a gold level lead building, signifies

         13  our commitment not only to our neighborhood, but to

         14  the environment at large.

         15                 Goldman Sachs's decision to stay in

         16  Lower Manhattan will also have an important economic

         17  impact on New York City.

         18                 During its development phase, the

         19  Site 26 project will produce more than 11,000 person

         20  years of employment. Nearly $32 million of tax

         21  revenues, exclusive of real estate tax, and

         22  approximately $2 billion of economic activity.

         23                 After completion, every year in New

         24  York City, the project in the business that it

         25  sponsors will generate over 33,000 jobs, $185

                                                            176

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  million in tax revenues, and over $9.8 billion of

          3  economic activity.

          4                 If you take the City and the State

          5  combined, these numbers grow to 42,000 jobs, $600

          6  million of tax revenues and over $11 billion of

          7  economic activity.

          8                 There have been many opportunities

          9  where business leaders and public officials have

         10  spoken in favor of this project. They include Carl

         11  Weisbrod, President of the Downtown Alliance; Connie

         12  Fishman, President of the Hudson River Park Trust;

         13  Madelyn Wils, Chair of Community Board No. 1; C.

         14  Virginia Fields, Borough President of Manhattan;

         15  Councilman Alan Gerson, who is here today; and City

         16  Planning Commissioner Amanda Burden, who said as she

         17  cast her vote in favor of the text amendment that

         18  supports this project, and I quote, "I'm absolutely

         19  thrilled to be able to vote for this text

         20  amendment."

         21                 This will facilitate the development

         22  of the headquarters for Goldman Sachs, an

         23  extraordinary expression in the confidence of the

         24  future of Lower Manhattan.

         25                 And in addition to this, Goldman
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          2  Sachs has chosen an exemplary architect who has made

          3  a wonderful design, which will compliment both the

          4  existing World Financial Center, and the future

          5  World Trade Center site.

          6                 As I say, I'm thrilled to vote yes.

          7  This is a great moment for Lower Manhattan.

          8                 Goldman Sachs is proud to play a role

          9  in the revitalization of Lower Manhattan. We

         10  enthusiastically add our proposed 2.1 million square

         11  foot headquarters building to the plans for the

         12  rebuilding of our City.

         13                 Thank you.

         14                 MR. MILLER: My name is George Miller.

         15  I'm the Managing Partner of Pei, Cobb, Freed and

         16  Partners and we're located at 88 Pine Street in

         17  Lower Manhattan, and we are delighted to participate

         18  in this project, which is really one of the first

         19  for the revitalization of Lower Manhattan.

         20                 Unfortunately, my partners, design

         21  partner, Harry Cobb, is unavailable today. But he's

         22  asked me to really convey to this Committee our

         23  great excitement and enthusiasm about the

         24  opportunity this project provides.

         25                 I would like to say also that our
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          2  challenge as architects is really to do two things:

          3  First and foremost, to respond to the very important

          4  programmatical requirements of our client, Goldman

          5  Sachs. But equally important, and some would argue,

          6  more important, our responsibility is to really

          7  provide a design that can really be a responsible

          8  citizen in this very important part of our City.

          9                 And that truly has been our goal

         10  since we began the design studies on this project

         11  just a few short months ago.

         12                 We have indeed been around and talked

         13  to every community organization and every

         14  stakeholder that has an interest in this project,

         15  tried to build a sound and strong support for the

         16  design concepts and ideas surrounding this building.

         17  And I'd like to just take two minutes to try and

         18  describe these design notions for you.

         19                 First of all, the building has been

         20  designed in such a way that it responds, of course

         21  to the program that has been put forward by Goldman

         22  to us, which is a mixed use of different floor plate

         23  sizes. They have a requirement for a very large

         24  floor plate at 75,000 square feet for their traders,

         25  and we have six of those trading floors within the
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          2  building.

          3                 There are also a number of what we

          4  call "bustle floors" that are around 50,000 square

          5  feet, and I have a model here, of course, that you

          6  can take a look at after our remarks.

          7                 And also the tower, the banking

          8  floors, which essentially are in the neighborhood of

          9  40,000 square feet.

         10                 Our goal has been really to design

         11  the building so that it really responds to two

         12  specific geometries in Lower Manhattan; the Broadway

         13  geometry, as well as the West Street geometry.

         14                 And we've also had to design the

         15  building in a way that it carefully responded to

         16  Battery Park City's and World Financial Center's

         17  view corridors. That is to say that from the south

         18  the buildings of American Express had a view

         19  corridor looking to the north and west that had to

         20  be maintained.

         21                 That was one of the reasons in the

         22  design that you see this curb facade facing to the

         23  west. It's to allow the view corridor to really be

         24  maintained.

         25                 It also happens to be one of the most
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          2  efficient floor plates that we can provide for the

          3  work station requirements of Goldman Sachs.

          4                 The rotation really of the building

          5  needs to respond to the grids of West Street and

          6  also Broadway, really allow what we call, what we

          7  believe is kind of a dynamic structure within the

          8  City, and you can see that essentially with its

          9  glass face facing to the west and to the -- it's

         10  100-foot face at the north, this building is going

         11  to be visible for many areas around our City.

         12                 And that actually was a very

         13  important part in the kind of design concepts for

         14  the building.

         15                 As you come down West Street, our

         16  idea was really to narrow the face of this facade,

         17  so that it really gave an appearance of slenderness

         18  vertically.

         19                 Also, I might add that the design

         20  notion of this curb respond both to the view

         21  corridor, as well as to the shape of the Battery

         22  Park City housing, allowed more sun to come into the

         23  ball field in the afternoon, which was an important

         24  kind of requirement for City Planning, for the

         25  neighborhood, I should say.
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          2                 I have plans here that I will be

          3  happy to show you, if you like, but I think I might

          4  just conclude by showing several images that we have

          5  of the project.

          6                 An image of the building from the

          7  World Trade Center site. This is an image of the

          8  building from the boat basin in Battery Park City,

          9  and also a view from the north of West Street.

         10                 The building is going to be very

         11  animated, as you move around it, and I'd like to

         12  conclude then with just showing this photo montage

         13  of the project which you can see within the overall,

         14  the City scape, the building located here, of

         15  course, about the same height as the American

         16  Express tower.

         17                 We're very delighted to participate

         18  in this project. We feel that we have effectively

         19  designed a building that not only responds to

         20  Goldman's needs, but also to the very important

         21  requirements of the community that's around it and

         22  the City as a whole.

         23                 Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: This project lies

         25  within Council Member Gerson's district. He is here,
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          2  and I'd like to call him on for a brief comment.

          3  Note the word "brief."

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: I have my

          5  brief with my remarks. I'll throw it out, I know

          6  that's what you meant, Mr. Chair.

          7                 In any event, at the risk of losing

          8  my reputation, I'm here to wholeheartedly support

          9  this application.  To oblige the Chair's request, I

         10  think the application speaks for itself. It has the

         11  support of the community board and the community,

         12  and I would note for the record that our community

         13  does support the development when it's an

         14  appropriate location for an appropriate purpose,

         15  with the appropriate context.

         16                 My concluding comment would only be

         17  that it's very important to the people of Lower

         18  Manhattan and our City, that Lower Manhattan

         19  continue as one of the world's leading international

         20  centers for finance and trade, and this will

         21  certainly help achieve that goal. For all of those

         22  reasons, I urge an aye vote, and thank you very,

         23  very much.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.

         25                 Council Member McMahon.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Thank you,

          3  Mr. Chairman. And gentlemen, thank you for being

          4  with us all morning.

          5                 Am I correct in understanding that

          6  they want us to approve a zoning change for a

          7  building that would move Goldman Sachs's

          8  headquarters, keep it at the World Trade Center,

          9  environmentally friendly building, architecturally

         10  beautiful building, they want to build a library in

         11  the neighborhood and a community center in the

         12  neighborhood, as well; is that correct?

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: That is

         14  correct.

         15                 We're also discussing their

         16  contribution to the proposed international youth

         17  center.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: My only

         19  question is, is there any way to get you to

         20  reconsider the North Shore of Staten Island for this

         21  project? Because we would love to have it.

         22                 Thank you. Sounds good.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: It's just funny

         24  that you should mention that, because I was actually

         25  going to speak about Long Island City. I don't know
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          2  if you guys were here for the entire testimony about

          3  the future of Long Island City, but it's --

          4                 MR. GALEN: Yes, we were.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: Well, we do

          6  have Citibank, but we thought it might be a nice

          7  place, certainly for some of your employees. Thank

          8  you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.

         10                 If there are no other questions,

         11  thank you, gentlemen.

         12                 MR. MILLER: Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I don't see

         14  anybody signed up to speak on this item, which is

         15  usually a good indication that everybody supports

         16  it.

         17                 I will close the public hearing on

         18  this item and we will move to take the vote.

         19                 First of all, let me make some

         20  comments, that when I took over the Chair of this

         21  Committee, one of the first items that I started

         22  working on, with all of you, was community

         23  facilities reform, and we are here today to

         24  basically modify it but approve it in almost the

         25  final stage of changing the text and preserving
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          2  residential communities throughout the entire City,

          3  and I certainly would not have been able to do that

          4  without the full support of my Committee members

          5  that are assembled here today and I do appreciate

          6  that.

          7                 The Chair recommends the approval of

          8  all the items, with the modification on the

          9  community facilities reform, that the bonus for the

         10  overlay be reduced from two on the commercial

         11  overlay, reduced from two to 1.6, and that we

         12  reaffirm the commitment of City Planning that when

         13  we come up with the rules and regulations for the

         14  house of worship exemption, that it is done in

         15  context with the Council.

         16                 COUNCIL CLERK: Chairman Avella.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Aye.

         18                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council Member Quinn.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: If I may be

         20  excused to explain my vote?

         21                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: So ordered.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: I just want to

         23  commend the Chair and the staff and the City

         24  Planning Commission for the vote today on community

         25  facilities. You know, it's an accomplishment
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          2  whenever we in the Council say we're going to do

          3  something and we do it, but it's really an

          4  accomplishment relating to this item, because there

          5  was years and years and decades of people just

          6  shaking their heads and saying, oh, yeah, it's too

          7  bad, but what are you going to do? And really, Tony,

          8  it's when you got to the Council that you said,

          9  well, what am I going to do? I'm going to do

         10  something and I'm going to make some changes. And I

         11  really think it's an enormous, enormous

         12  accomplishment today, and I feel even more heartened

         13  by the fact that you said you're going to work to

         14  continue this, as the issues that impact my and

         15  other parts of the City, and I feel very confident

         16  we'll have another great day where we'll address

         17  those, but I just want to say in the strongest

         18  possible terms how impressed I am about what we're

         19  doing here today and really what a credit it is to

         20  you that this day has come. And the same note to

         21  Staten Island, you know, both these things are an

         22  inspiration to me as I battle issues in my district,

         23  and it really is, you know, I sat briefly in the

         24  Council before term limits, and, you know, we were

         25  more -- we wouldn't have been as likely to rush
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          2  head-long, maybe not knowing, being around is a good

          3  thing because you're not so sure of everything

          4  that's ahead of you, and we wouldn't have been as

          5  likely to run head-long into huge complex zoning

          6  issues with the expectation we would come out the

          7  other side with what we wanted.

          8                 But these are two great examples that

          9  should give all the neighborhoods in our City hope

         10  about their future. So, I enthusiastically vote aye

         11  on all items.

         12                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council Member Gioia.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: Mr. Chair, may

         14  I have maybe 15 or 20 minutes to explain my vote?

         15                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: No.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: Thank you.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Forty-five.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: I will try to

         19  be as brief as possible.

         20                 First of all, congratulations. I echo

         21  Council Member Quinn's words on the matters before

         22  us today. You've done a fine job, as has your staff

         23  and the rest of the Committee.

         24                 I'm particularly concerned about the

         25  vote today on Long Island City rezoning, which
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          2  obviously is near and dear to my heart. Without a

          3  long hearing, I just wanted to highlight three quick

          4  points before I do vote yes on all matters before us

          5  today.

          6                 One is that as I've said earlier, my

          7  staff will be sending to you the August 5th letter

          8  from Chairwoman Burden to me, outlining a compromise

          9  that City Planning has agreed to, and that really

         10  was something that Mr. Massaro and Mr. Malloy and

         11  some of the other residents of Long Island City

         12  testified to and there's a concern there, that they

         13  were left out of this process and that Long Island

         14  City will become this bifurcated place, and we

         15  certainly do not want to see that, and I believe

         16  City Planning, that they will fulfill that

         17  commitment and begin a study of the Vernon Boulevard

         18  corridor and the additional mid-block in Long Island

         19  City. It was also, by the way, very interesting that

         20  Mr. Gilbert, also a developer, also testified today,

         21  as well, that it would actually make that easier and

         22  more in line with the development economically of

         23  Long Island City. So, I think that is a very

         24  important thing to note. Without that I would not be

         25  able to vote yes on this, so I'm very pleased that
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          2  that is in there.

          3                 Second, and someone else mentioned --

          4  there's been a lot of testimony, I don't know who --

          5  but talked about the infrastructure in place. And as

          6  we begin to upzone anywhere, as we begin to watch

          7  this City grow, it is critically important that we

          8  have in place, not only parking, or not only the

          9  parkland, but particularly the schools, in place.

         10  And Long Island City is very important in that

         11  regard, in that as we begin to have towers on the

         12  waterfront, what we don't want to see happen is -- I

         13  don't want to see just a rental community of 20

         14  somethings, and 30 somethings, and the moment they

         15  start to do better in their careers and have

         16  children and they look around and say, well, where

         17  are we going to send our children to school, they

         18  get up and leave. It's critically important that we

         19  have schools there that can sustain the growth of

         20  the waterfront and Long Island City. Good schools,

         21  both elementary, middle and high schools, and I hope

         22  that that will be part of the City's plan, and I'm

         23  certainly advocating and working with the Department

         24  of Education to make sure that it is in their

         25  capital plan, in terms of making sure that that is
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          2  there in Long Island City.

          3                 And finally, and it's the point of

          4  manufacturing. I think we heard it, numerous

          5  testimony in this regard, I think it's important

          6  that we look at this City and we say what is the

          7  healthy amount -- what component does manufacturing

          8  play in New York City's economy, and what percentage

          9  of the domestic product of New York City should be

         10  manufacturing?

         11                 Where does manufacturing fit into the

         12  mix of diversifying New York's economy?

         13                 When we come up with that number,

         14  when we come up with that percentage, we then have

         15  to figure out how much land is appropriate for that

         16  task, and I am in favor of protecting certain amount

         17  of lands to give predictability and planability, and

         18  enable people to make those capital investments into

         19  their factories and plants and storage facilities to

         20  allow manufacturing, not only to sustain in New

         21  York, but also to grow to the appropriate levels.

         22                 And, finally, any part of the plan

         23  EDC puts forward, not only do I think it's important

         24  to have the zoning aspect to it, but for the

         25  dwindling economic manufacturing base, as some
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          2  mentioned because of outside pressure from other

          3  states or other countries, it's very important if we

          4  are losing certain manufacturing jobs, that we're

          5  putting the money in the budget to appropriately

          6  retrain those workers, that they can be an effective

          7  part of the New York City economy.

          8                 Saying all that, thank you very much

          9  for your indulgence, it's an issue that's very

         10  important to me. I proudly vote yes on all. Thank

         11  you, Mr. Chair.

         12                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council Member

         13  McMahon.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Thank you.

         15  And to the Chairman of this Subcommittee and to

         16  Chair Melinda Katz, and Chair of the Subcommittee

         17  Tony Avella, I must say it really is a very

         18  meaningful day for us in the work we've done here

         19  today.

         20                 The Growth Management Task Force's

         21  Low Density Amendments and the Council's Community

         22  Facility Restrictions we vote on today represent a

         23  slice of victory in the overdevelopment battle for

         24  all New Yorkers and especially Staten Islanders, but

         25  we have not won the war.
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          2                 I have to repeat it, because my

          3  friend Mike is here now. I said before, as Churchill

          4  admonished, "This is not the beginning of the end,

          5  or even the middle, but the beginning of the

          6  beginning." Old homes are still being torn down on

          7  Staten Island and the recent rash of residential

          8  building in sardine-packed commercial zones is

          9  mind-boggling.

         10                 I am please to have extracted a

         11  commitment from Chairwoman Amanda Burden to continue

         12  the Task Force's work, until we win that war, and

         13  begin to deal with the issues of manufacturing zones

         14  as well.

         15                 Our vote to allow a senior citizen

         16  development at the Tides is an example of smart

         17  growth. It shows that this Committee is just not

         18  about anti-development, but can look at projects

         19  that make sense and can approve them.

         20                 We have a great need for such an

         21  active adult community on Staten Island, and this is

         22  a good project.

         23                 I also join in the admonition of my

         24  colleague, so that we will look very skeptically in

         25  any other projects that we'll seek to change
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          2  manufacturing zones, until such time as an overall

          3  study is done.

          4                 And lastly, just to say I commend my

          5  colleague Eric Gioia's hard work on the Hunters

          6  Point project. He served his community well. And for

          7  the men and women from Goldman Sachs, just to say

          8  that their commitment to downtown New York, as we

          9  come upon the three-year anniversary of September

         10  11th is really some great news for all New Yorkers,

         11  our economy and also the morale of our City, and

         12  that's something that we should all be equally proud

         13  of.

         14                 Having said that, I proudly vote aye

         15  on all items today.

         16                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         17                 COUNCIL CLERK: By a vote of five in

         18  the affirmative, none in the negative and no

         19  abstentions, all items, coupled items are approved

         20  and referred to the full Committee on Land Use.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: That closes this

         22  meeting of the Subcommittee on Zoning and

         23  Franchises. Three and a half hours later.

         24                 (Hearing concluded at 1:30 p.m.)

         25
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